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DIRECTORS' REPORT 
 
Dear Shareholders, 
 
Your directors take great pleasure in presenting the Fourth Annual Report along with 
the audited financial statements for FY2023. 
 

Company Overview and Operations 
Your Company (the ‘Company’ or ‘Bajaj Finserv Health’) is health tech venture that aims 
to transform the healthcare sector in India. It offers a range of healthcare solutions and 
services. The mission is to provide platform for customers to manage their health 360°, 
which includes wellness services. In India, insurers only provide IPD coverage which is 
not value creating for customers as well as insurers. 
 
The Company has started servicing retail as well as corporate employees and has                     
0.9 million paid users, which includes employees of 353 large corporates. It has built a 
network of over 120,000 doctors, more than 6,000 diagnostic points and over 1,800 
hospitals where Outpatient (OP) transactions can be done on cashless basis.  It has 
already done over 0.34 million health claims in FY2023. It has also developed a 
consumer facing app which allows customers to manage their plans, access network of 
healthcare providers, book appointments and store their health records for future 
reference. Bajaj Finserv Health is also a Wave 1 partner of the Digital Health Mission of 
the NHA. 

 

Financial Results 
The financial statements of the company for the year ended 31 March 2023 have been 
disclosed as per Schedule III to the Act and IND AS. 
 
A Cash Flow Statement and statement of Profit & Loss Account for the FY2023 are 
attached to the balance sheet. 
 

Presentation of Financial results 
The highlights of the financial results of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2023 
are given below: 

(Rs. in lakh) 

Particulars For the year 
ended on 
31 March 2023  

For the year 
ended on  
31 March 2022 

Total income from operations 18,495.23  8,820.86  

Expenditure excluding depreciation 35,748.41  20,509.54  

Depreciation 1,533.38  1,256.27  

Profit/(Loss) before tax (18,786.56)             (12,944.95) 

Provision for Tax- Current - - 

Deferred - - 

Profit/(Loss) after tax (18,786.56)     (12,944.95) 
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Other comprehensive income for the year 
(net of tax) 

200.75   
(71.92) 

Total comprehensive income/(Loss) for 
the year 

(18,585.81)  (13,016.87) 
 

Earnings per share (Nominal value per share 
Rs. 10) 

(751.46)  (517.80) 

 
During the period ended 31 March 2023, the Company incurred a loss of Rs. 18,585.81 
lakh. 
 

  Dividend and transfer to reserves 

Considering the operating and accumulated losses, Board did not recommended 
dividend, nor any amount is proposed for transfer to reserves. 

Future outlook 

Bajaj Finserv Health is health tech venture that aims to transform the healthcare sector 
in India. It offers a range of healthcare solutions and services.  The mission is to solve 
for access and financing of healthcare to Indian consumers and making healthcare 
prepaid, preventive and personalized by covering hospitalization, diagnostics and 
doctor consultation spends. The company is now also developing Wellness benefits and 
has already launched Mental Wellbeing, Diet & Nutrition programs and Step tracker with 
challenges. 

Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures 
The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or a joint venture company. 
Accordingly, the requirement of attaching form AOC-1 is not applicable to the Company. 

  The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Bajaj Finserv Limited (BFS). 
 

Material Changes and Commitments 

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of 
the Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the 
Company and the date of this Report. 
 

Risk Management  
The Company has put in place an adequate and effective risk reporting system. In the 
opinion of the Board, there are no residual risks, which would threaten the existence of 
the Company. 
 

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 
The Board comprises of persons with diverse experience and skills, such that it best 
serves the governance and strategic needs of the Company and its stakeholders.                    
The present composition broadly meets this objective. The directors are persons of 
eminence in areas such as business, strategy, finance, law, risk,  taxation, etc., and bring 
with them experience / skills which add value to the performance of the Board and 
Company, as a whole. The Directors are selected purely on the basis of merit with no 
discrimination on race, colour, religion, gender, or nationality. 
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Retirement by Rotation: 

Devang Mody, Whole time Director & CEO, retires by rotation at the ensuing annual 
general meeting (AGM), being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. Necessary 
information to be disclosed in case of re-appointment, as required under the Act, is 
given in the Notice of the ensuing AGM. 
 
During FY2023, there was no change in the other Directors. 

 

Annual Return 
A copy of the Annual Return as provided under section 92(3) read with section 134(3)(a) 
of the Act in the prescribed Form MGT-7 is available on the Company’s website and can 
be accessed at https://www.bajajfinservhealth.in/financial-report  
 

Number of Meetings of Board 
During the FY2023, the Board of Directors met 4 (four) times, viz., 25 April 2022,                      
25 July 2022, 11 October 2022 and 25 January 2023. The gap between any two 
consecutive meetings was less than one hundred and twenty days. 
 
The details pertaining to the attendance of each Directors at the meetings of the Board 
held during the FY2023 are mentioned below: 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Director Category No. of Board Meetings 
held during FY2023 
Entitled 
to attend 

Attended 

1. V Rajagopalan Chairman, Non- executive 
director 

4 4 

2. Anish Praful Amin Non- executive director 4 4 
3. Devang Pravin Mody Whole-time Director & CEO 4 4 

 

Directors' Responsibility Statement 
In accordance with the provisions of section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, directors, 
to the best of their knowledge and belief, state that: 
 

(i) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable Accounting 
Standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to 
material departures; 
 

(ii) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently 
and made judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, so as 
to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of 
the financial year and of the loss of the Company for FY2023; 
 

(iii) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud and other irregularities; 
 

(iv) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and 
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(v) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions 
of all applicable laws and that, such systems were adequate and were 
operating effectively. 

 

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investment 
During FY2023, the Company has not granted any loans, or made any investments in or 
provided any guarantees or securities under section 186 of the Act. 
 

Deposits 
During FY2023, your Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of 
sections 73 and 74 of the Act read together with the Companies (Acceptance of 
Deposits) Rules, 2014 as amended. 
 

Share Capital 
During the FY2023, there was no change in the equity share capital of the Company.  
 
As on 31 March 2023, the authorised share capital of the Company was                           
Rs. 50,000,000 divided into 5,000,000 equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/- while the 
paid-up equity share capital stood at Rs. 25,000,000 crore comprising of 25,00,000 
fully paid equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 fully paid-up.  
 
During the year under review, the Company has not issued any equity shares, 
convertible securities, shares with differential voting rights, sweat equity shares nor 
has it granted any stock options. As on 31 March 2023, the Company has an outstanding 
convertible loan amounting to Rs. 457.5 crore. 

Employee Stock Option Scheme 
Consequent to approval received from the shareholders of Bajaj Finserv Limited, 
holding company of the Company at 11th AGM held on 19 July 2018 and approval received 
from the shareholders of the Company at its 4th AGM held on 16 July 2018, the Company 
approved the Bajaj Finserv Limited Employee Stock Option Scheme (BFS-ESOS). The 
employees of the Company are also covered under this Scheme. The Company is also 
the corporate trustee for the Bajaj Finserv ESOP Trust, formed for managing the stock 
options granted under BFS ESOS.  

The details of options granted by the holding company, exercised by the employees of 
the Company, under the aforesaid scheme, during the year under review, are given in 
the financial statements which form part of the Annual Report. 

Related Party Transactions 
All contracts/arrangement/transactions entered by the Company with related parties 
during the period under review were in compliance with the applicable provisions of the 
Act including on arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business of the 
Company under the Act. None of the transactions required members’ prior approval 
under the Act. 
 
Details of transactions with related parties during FY2023 are provided in the notes to 
the financial statements. There were no transaction requiring disclosure under section 
134(3)(h) of the Act. Hence, the prescribed Form AOC–2 does not form a part of this 
Report. 
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Significant and Material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts 
During the year under review, no significant and material orders were passed by any 
Regulators or Courts or tribunals, which may impact the going concern status of the 
Company and its operations in future. 
 

Particulars Regarding Conservation of Energy, Technology 
Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo 
The information pertaining to the conservation of energy and technology absorption in 
terms of section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 is stated as below: 

 
(a) Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption 

Though the operations of the Company are not energy-intensive in nature, it 
implements various energy conservation measures across all its functions. 
 
Considering the nature of operations, no particulars regarding technology 
absorption are required to be given in this Report. 

 
(b) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo 

During FY2023, there were no foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the 
financial year, which is the same as last financial year. 

 
Loss booked due to fluctuation in exchange rate amounted to Rs 0.52 lakh in                       
FY2023 as against Rs. 3.92 lakh in FY2022. 

 

Audit Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
The provisions of section 177 and section 178 of the Act relating to constitution of an 
Audit Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee, are not applicable to 
the Company, being a wholly­ owned subsidiary of Bajaj Finserv Limited 

 
Corporate Social Responsibility 

The provisions of section 135 of the Act relating to Corporate Social Responsibility are 
not applicable to the Company. 

 

Secretarial standards of ICSI  
The Company has complied with the requirements prescribed under the Secretarial 
Standards on meetings of the Board of Directors (SS–1) and General Meetings                
(SS–2) read with the MCA circulars. 
 

  Internal Audit 
Internal audit is an integral part of corporate governance. The objective of internal audit 
is to identify, assess and mitigate risks as well as to evaluate and contribute to the 
systems of internal controls and governance processes followed by the Company. Key 
elements of internal audit are assurance on controls, governance and compliance, 
business risk assessment and its mitigation and process optimization. 
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The Board periodically reviews the internal audit reports and the adequacy and 
effectiveness of internal controls. Significant audit observations, corrective and 
preventive actions thereon are presented to the Board.  

Statutory Auditors 
KKC & Associates LLP (earlier known as Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP) (FRN 105146W/ 
W100621) continues to be the Statutory Auditors of the Company. They hold office for 
a period of 4 years upto the 7th  AGM scheduled in the year 2025. 
 
The statutory audit report for the FY2023, is unmodified, i.e., it does not contain any 
qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer by the Statutory Auditor. 

 

Other Statutory Disclosures 
 There was no change in the nature of the business of the Company. 
 Disclosure pertaining to maintenance of cost records as required under sub-

section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, is not applicable to your 
Company. 

 There was no application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency 
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 during the year against the Company. 

 There was no one-time settlement entered into with any Bank or financial 
institutions in respect of any loan taken by the Company. 

 During the year under review, there were no frauds reported by the Auditors to 
the Board under section 143(12) of the Act. 

 The Company being an unlisted company, details as required to be reported under 
section 197(12) of the Act, is not applicable to the Company.  

 Disclosure as required under section 197(14) of the Act for the Managing Director 
or Whole-time Director, for any remuneration or commission from any holding 
company or subsidiary company is not applicable to the Company. 

 The provisions of section 177(9) & (10) of the Act, are not applicable to the 
Company. According, it was not required to establish any vigil mechanism during 
the year under review. 

 The provisions of section 178 of the Act regarding annual performance evaluation 
are not applicable to the Company. 

 Pursuant to the legislation ‘The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013’, the Company has a policy on 
Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace and has constituted an Internal 
Complaints Committee. No case was reported during the year under review. 
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Independent Auditor's Report 

To 
The Members of 

Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 

Report on the audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

1. We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Bajaj Finserv Health Limited ('the Company'), 

which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2023, the statement of profit and loss (including other 

comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, 

and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 

explanatory information ('the Financial Statements'). 

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 

Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act') in the manner so req uired 

and give a true and fa ir view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state 

of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2023, and its loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity 

and its cash flows for the year then ended. 

Basis for Opinion 

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing ('SAs') specified under section 143(10) of 

the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit 
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 

Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI') together with the ethical 

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act, and the 

rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements 

and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our opinion on the Financial Statements. 

Other Information 

4. The Company's board of directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 

information included in the Company's annual report, but does not include the Financia l Statements and our 

auditors' report thereon. 

5. Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 

assurance conclusion thereon. 

6. In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibili ty is to read the other information and, 

in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements or 

our knowledge obtained in the aud it or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we 

have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to 

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

7. The Company's board of directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act, with respect 

to the preparation of these Financia l Statements that give a tru e and fa ir view of the state of affairs, loss and other 

comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance w ith the accounting 

principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian accounting standards (' Ind AS') specified under 

section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

Sunshine Tower, Level 19, Senapati Ba pat Marg, Elphinstone Road, Mumbai 400013, India 
T: +91 22 6143 7333 E: info@kkcllp.in W: www.kkcl lp.in LLPIN: AAP-2267 

Suite 52, Bombay Mutual Build ing, Sir Phirozshah Mehta Road, Fort, Mumbai 400001, India 
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accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and 

detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 

adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 

of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the ·Financia l Statements that give a 

true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

8. In preparing the Financial Statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability 

to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 

concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Di recto rs eit her intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

9. The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements 

10. Our object ives are t o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our 

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 

accordance w ith SAs wi ll always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 

fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they cou ld reasonably be expected 

to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financia I Statements. 

11. As part of an audit in accordance wi th SAs, we e>.ercise professional judgment and maintain professional 

skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

11.1. identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perfo rm aud it procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecti ng a material 
misstatement result ing from fraud is higher than for one result ing from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intent ional omissions, misrepresentations, or the overrid e of internal control. 

11.2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under sect ion 143(3)(i) the Act, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether t he Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference 
to Financial Statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

11.3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and re lated d isclosures made by the Management. 

11.4. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists re lated to events or 
condi t ions t hat may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to 
the re lated disclosures in the Financia l Stat ements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on t he audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. 
However, future events or cond itions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

11.5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including t he 
disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlyi ng transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation. 

12. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 

timing of the audit and sign ificant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 

ident ify during our aud it. ~soci 
t?> 55 ~ .... 
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13. We also provide those charged with governance wit h a statement that we have complied wit h relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all re lationships and ot her matters th at 

may reasonab ly be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

14. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ('the Order'), issued by the Central Government of 

India in terms of sub-sect ion (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the 'Annexure A' a statement on the matters 

specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

15. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

15.1. We have sought and obta ined all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 

belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit. 

15.2. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 

appears from our examination of those books. 

15.3. The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including other comprehensive income, the statement 

of changes in equity and t he cash flow statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books 

of account. 

15.4. In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of 

the Act. 

15.5. On the basis of the written rep resentations received from the directors as on 31 March 2023 taken on 

record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from being 

appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

15.6. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements of 

the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 'Annexure 

B'. 

15.7. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by 

the Company to its directors during the current yea r is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of 

the Act read with Schedule V of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit 

laid down under Section 197 of the Act. 

16. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 

the explanations given to us: 

16.1. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position. 

16.2. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for wh ich there were 

any material foreseeable losses. 

16.3. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 

Fund by the Company. 

16.4. The Management has represented, to best of their knowledge and belief, that no funds have been 

advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or 

kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or ent ity(ies), includ ing foreign entit ies 

('Intermediaries'), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the lntermed iary 

sha ll, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identi fied i anner 

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ('U lt imate Beneficiaries') or provide any g 0~ <5.e& ity 

or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. C(J c~t.r-:d --; 

Sunshine Tower, Level 19, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road, Mumbai 400013, India 
T: +9122 6143 7333 E: info@kkcllp.in W: www.kkcllp.in LLPIN: AAP-2267 

Suite 52, Bombay Mutual Bu ilding, Sir Phirozshah Mehta Road, Fort, Mumbai 400001, India 



kkc & associates llp 
Chartered Accountants 
(formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP) 

16.5. The Management has represented, to best of their knowledge and bel ief, that no funds have been received 

by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entit ies ('Funding Pa rties'), wit h t he 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whet her, directly or 

indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 

of the Funding Party ('Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 
the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

16.6. Based on such audit procedures, that has been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 

circumstances, P.erformed by us, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe t hat t he 

representation under para 16.4 and 16.5 contain any material misstatement. 

16.7. In our opinion and accord ing to informat ion and explanat ion given to us, the Company has not declared 

or paid dividend during the year. Hence, compliance with section 123 of the Act by the Company does not 
arise. 

16.8. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account using 

accounting software which has a feature of recording audit t rail (edit log) faci lity is app licable to the 

Company with effect from 01 April 2023 and accordingly, reporting under Ru le ll(g) of Companies (Audit 

and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the fi nancial year ended 31 March 2023. 

For KKC & Associates LLP 

Chartered Accountants 
(formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP) 
Firm Registration Number: 105146W/Wl 00621 

Soorej Kombaht 
Partner 
/CAI Membership No: 164366 
UDIN: 23164366BGYKT07066 

Place: Pune 
Date: 25April 2023 
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Annexure "A" to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements of Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 

for the year ended 31 March 2023 

(Referred to in paragraph 14 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report of 

even date) 

i. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and 
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment ('PPE'). 

The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particu lars of intangible assets. 

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its PPE by which all PPE are verified over 

a period of th ree years. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard 

to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, PPE were physically 

verified by the Management during the year. In our opinion, and according to the information and 

explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the company, it does not hold any immovable properties (other than 

properties where the Company is the lessee, and the lease agreements are duly executed in favor of the 

lessee). Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the company. 

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
reva lued its PPE (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year. 

(e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the 

Company for hold ing any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 

1988) and rules made thereunder. 

ii. (a) The Company has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature 
of loans, secu red or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or 
any other parties during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(c), 3(iii)(d) and 3(ii i)(e) 
of the Order is not applicable. 

(b) In our opinion and accord ing to the information and explanations given to us, the investments made are 

not prejudicial to the Company's interest. The Company has not provided 

guarantees, securities and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances 

in the nature of loans and guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the Company's interest. Accordingly, 

provision of clause 3(ii)(b) is not applicable t o that extent. 

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 

granted any loans or advances in nature of loans to Promoters/ Related Parties (as defined in section 2(76) 

of the Act) which are either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment 

Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii)(f) is not applicable to the Company. 

iii. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made 
investments in, or provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of 
loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties during 
the year including other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. 
Accordingly, provisions of the cla use 3(iii)(a) to (f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(b) In our opinion and accord ing to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted 
any loans or advances in nature of loans to Promoters/ Related Parties (as defined in section2(76} of the 
Act) which are either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment. 
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iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company has not granted 
any loans covered, made any investments or provided any guarantees and securities under Section 185 
and Section 186 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of the clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to 
the Company. 

v. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 

accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public during the year in 
terms of directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India or the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other 
relevant provisions of the Act and the ru les framed there under. Accordingly, the provisions of the clause 
3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

vi. The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) section 
148 of the Act for any of the services rendered by the Company. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(vi) 
of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

vii. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, amounts deducted/accrued 
in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, 
provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of 
excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited by the 
Company with the appropriate authorities in all cases during the year 

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of 

provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, Goods and Services Tax, duty of customs, cess 

and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2023 for a period of more than six months 
from the date they became payable. 

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Goods 

and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of 

customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues, which have not been 

deposited to/with the appropriate authority on account of any dispute. 

viii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, we confirm that we have not come across any transactions 
not recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or d isclosed as income during the year 
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

ix. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not ta ken any loans or other borrowings 
from any financial institutions, banks, government and dues to debenture holders or in payment of 
interest thereon to any lender during the year. Hence, reporting under clause (ix)(a) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we 

report that the Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 

government or any government authority or any other lender. 

(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no unutilized term loans at the 

beginning of the yea r and hence, reporting under clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and on 

an overall examination of the Financial Statements of the Company, we report t hat the Company,has not 

raised any loans on short term basis and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not 

applicable to the Company. 

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, reporting under 

clause 3(ix)(e) and 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
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x. (a) The Company did not raise money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt 
instruments) during the year. 

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment / private placement of shares I fully I partly I 
optionally convertible debentures during the yea r. 

xi. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there has been no fraud by 
the Company or any fraud on the Company that has been noticed or reported during the year nor have we 
been informed of any such case by the Management Accordingly, provisions of the clause 3(xi)(a) of the 
Order is not applicable to the company. 

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as 
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government. 

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistleblower complaints received by the Company 

during the year. 

xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi 
company. Accordingly, provisions of the clause 3(xi i) of the Order is not applicab le to the Company. 

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of 
the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act 
where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as 
required by the applicable accounting standards. 

xiv. (a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate 
with the size and nature of its business. 

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date, forthe period under audit. 

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year the Company 
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors. 
Accordingly, provisions of the clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company and hence 
provisions of section 192 of the Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. 

xvi. (a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, provisions of the clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without 

obtaining a valid CoR from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

(c) The Company is not a CIC as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank of India. 

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us, in the group (in accordance with Core 

Investment Companies (CIC's) (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) there are 17 companies forming part of the 

promoter/promoter group of the Company which are CICs. Further, as informed these CIC's are 

unregistered Cl Cs as per Para 9.1 of Notification No. RBl/2020-21/24 dated 13th August 2020 of the Reserve 

Bank of India. 

xvii. The Company has incurred cash losses in the financial year. The amount of cash loss is Rs.17268.15 lakhs 
(Previous year Rs. 11714.78 lakhs). 

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly provisions of the 
clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable. 
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xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing 
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information 
accompanying the financia l statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans 
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our 
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report 
that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when 
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an 
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the 
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all 
liabi lities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the 
Company as and when they fall due. 

xx. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of 
the Company, the provision of section 135 of the Act relating to CSR is not applicable to the Company. 
Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

xxi. The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture company and is not required to 
prepare consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, provisions of the clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not 
applicable to the company. 

For KKC & Associates LLP 

Chartered Accountants 
(formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP) 
Firm Registration Number: 105146W/Wl00621 

Soorej Kombaht 

Partner 
ICAI Membership No: 164366 
UDIN:23164366BGYKT07066 

Place: Pune 
Date: 25 April 2023 
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Annexure 'B' to the Independent Auditors' report on the Financial Statements of Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 

for the year ended 31 March 2023 

(Referred to in paragraph 15.6 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report of 

even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls w ith reference to the aforesaid Financial Statements under Clause (i) 
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (' the Act' ). 

Opinion 

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements of Bajaj Finserv 

Health Limited ('the Company') as at 31 March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the Financial Statements of 

the Company for the year ended on that date. 

2. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial cont rols w ith reference 

to the Financial Statements and such internal financia l controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, 

based on t he internal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 

essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 

Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (' the Guidance Note') . 

Management's responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

3. The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining interna l fi nancia l controls based on 

the interna l controls over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essentia l 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, 

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls t hat were operating effectively for 

ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the 

safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of 

the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditor' s responsibility 

4. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to the 

Financial Statements based on our aud it. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the 

Standards on Auditing ('SAs') , prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicab le to an audit of 

internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements. Those SAs and the Guidance Note require 

that we comply with the ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obta in reasonable assurance 

about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements were established 

and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

5. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 

controls system with reference to the Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 

financial cont rols with reference to the Financial Statements included obta in ing an understanding of internal 

financial controls with reference to the Financia l Sta tements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, 

and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of interna l control based on the assessed risk. 

The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 

misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

6. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

opinion on th e Company's internal financia l controls with reference to t he Financial Statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls w ith reference to the Financial Statements 

7. 

provide reasonable assurance regarding the rel iability of fi nancial reporting and the prep 
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Statements for external purposes in accordance w ith generally accepted accounting princi ples. A company's 

internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements include those po licies and procedures that 

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accu rately and fa irly reflect the t ransactions 

and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that t ransactions are recorded 

as necessary to permit preparation of Financial Statements in accordance wit h generally accepted accounting 

principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with 

authorisations of management and di rectors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 

prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could 

have a material effect on the Financia l Statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial Statements 

8. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements, 

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due 

to error or fraud may occur and not be detect ed. Also, projections of any evaluation of the int ernal financial 

controls with reference to the Financial Statements to futu re periods are subject to the risk that the internal 

fina ncial controls with reference to the Financial Statements may become inadequate because of changes in 

conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

For KKC & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
(formerly Khimji Kunverj i & Co LLP) 
Firm Registration Number: 105146W/W100621 

Soorej Kombaht 
Partner 
ICAI Membership No: 164366 
UDIN: 23164366BGYKT07066 

Place: Pune 
Date: 25 April 2023 
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Bajaj Finse1·v Health L imited 
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2023 

(All amo,1111< in fNR lakh•, unit"> 01herwi><! ~tutctl) 

Particulars 

ASSETS 
Non-current a< ets 
Property, plant and .:yuipm<nt 

Right of Use A<-.et 

Other inta11gible ~,cl:. 

Financial 3' '<.ts 

I. Other fi nan..:ial a.,-.cts 

Other non-current a"ets 
Current tax 3"cts 

Total non-current a«ets 
Current as<cts 
Financial a•-.cts 
i. In~ I men ts 
ii. Trade receivables 
iii. Ca<h ond c<ISh equivalents 
iv. Other fi11 ancial ll.\'CIS 

Other current a--ets 
Total current as<cts 
Toh1I a«ets 
EQUITY AND LIABILIT l i<;S 
Equity 
Equity ~hare capital 
ln<tmment< entirely equity in nature 
Other equity 

Total cuuity 
LIABILITIES 
Non-current liabilities 
Finan..:ial Liabilities 

i. L~<e Liahililies 
Total non-current lia bilities 
Current liabilities 
Financial liabi lities 

i. TraJe payables 
total out,ta11di11g dues of nii<;rO enkrpri,cs and srM11l e111erp1 i'c-; 

total out-landing dues of creditors other thon micro ent~ri>•"' and $111•11 
enterpri<;CS 

ii. Le;s,e Liahililies 
iii. Other cum ... -nt finan-.ial liahilitit-s 
Provi,i .. ms 
Other current liahiliti.::s 
Total current li~hilitics 
Total liahilitics 
Total eQuity and liabilities 

Nole No 

3 
4 

5 

6(a) 

8 

6(c) 

6(d) 
6(e) 
6(b) 

9 

IO(a) 
IO(c) 
IO(b) 

JI (a) 

11 (c) 

I l (a) 
I l(b) 

12 & 13 
14 

Summary of significant accounting policii:s followed by the Company 2 

T he accompanying notes are integra l part of the fin ancial statements 
As per our report of even date 

As at March 31, As at March 31 , 
2023 2022 

679.46 g;o 56 

1,769.53 1,395.49 

4,181\ 64 2,054.03 

2 14.14 301\ RR 

2,459.79 1,785.09 
624.23 83 60 

9,933.79 6,455.65. 

275.74 260.78 
2,060 R3 889.43 
2,309.25 1,599.66 

37.30 25.00 
2,443 89 ~~'U I 

7,127.0J 3,660.08 
17,060.80 10,115.73 

2so no 250.00 
45,750 00 23,750.00 

(39,073.79) (20,487 .98) 

6,926.2 1 3,512.02 

1,406.41 974.46 
1,406.41 974.46 

2 06 3.23 
3,542.47 2,351.34 

379.04 399.47 
2,308.42 1,295.7 1 
1,827.89 1,08 1.90 

(ii;~ 10 497.liO 
8,728.18 5,629.25 

10,134.59 6,603.71 
17,060.RO 10, 11 5.73 

For KKC & A"'oc ialc:s LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

(fonuerly .Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP) 

On behalf of the Board of Directors ff 
~ ~-"' 

TCAT Fim1 Regi~trat ion Numb..:r: 105 146W/W I00621 

Soorej Komt>aht 

Paitner 
!CAI Member<.h ip Number: 164366 
Punc: 

Devang M ody V.Rajagopalan 

Direc tor 

DIN:07794726 

~-<' 
Manee<b Sham1a 

Finance Head 

Dire.ctur 

DfN:02997795 

~''~ .... 
'"' ''°''. . 



Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended March 31, 2023 
(All amounts in INR lakbs, unle s otheiwise stated) 

Particulars 

Revenue from operations 
Other income 
Total income 

Expenses 
Fioance costs 
Employee benefits expense 
Depreciation and amo1ti, at ion expense 
Other expenses 
Total expenses 

Loss before tax 
Income tax expense 

- CwTent tax 
- Defo1Ted tax 

Total tax expense 
Loss for the year 
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) 
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
Remea urements of post-employment benefit obligations 

Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year, net of tax 

Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year, net of tax 

Basic earnings per share (In INR) 
Diluted earnings per share (In INR) 
(Nominal value per share INR I 0) 

Note No 

15 
16 

20 
17 
18 
19 

13 

For year ended For year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

17,996.74 8,667.52 
498.49 153.34 

18,495.23 8,820.86 

191.87 66.45 
10,779.50 6,418.45 
1,533.38 1,256.27 

24,777.04 14,024.64 
37,281.79 21,765.81 

(18.786.56) (12.944.95) 

- -
- -
- -

<18,786.56) (12,944.95) 

200.75 (71.92) 

200.75 (71 .92) 

(18,585.81) (13,016.87) 

(75 1.46) (5 17.80) 
(751.46) (517.80) 

Sunuua1y of significant accounting policies followed by the Company 2 
The accompanying notes are integral pai-t of the financial statements 
As per our report of even date 

For KKC & Assoc.iates LLP 
Chartered Acc,ountants 
(fom1erly Khimji Kunve1ji & Co LLP) 
ICAI Finn Registration Number: I 05 l 46W fW I 00621 

Soorej Kombaht 
Partner 
ICAT Membership Number: 164366 
Pune: 

*This document is confidential 

D"'k: 2.s ~r 2 oi.3 

On behalf of the Board of Director~ 

~ --!• 
Devang Mody 
Diredor 
DIN:07794726 

,_/~ 
Maneesh Sharma 
Finance Head 

V.Rajagopalan 
Director 
DTN:02997795 



Bajaj Finserv Hea lth Limited 
Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31 , 2023 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unk~s otherwise stated) 

Particulars 

Cash flow from operating activities 
Lo::.s before income ta"'I'. from Continuing operations 

Loss before income tax 
Adjustments for 

Depre..:iation and amo11i ation expense 
Chane..:s in fair value of financial a~~..:ls at fair value throueh profit or IMs 
Unwinding of discount on security depo;:,its 
Interest income cla,,,ified as invc:.ling cash flows 
Finance co ts 

Change in operating assets and liabilities 
Increase in trade payables 
(Increase) in trade receivables 
Increase in other financial a<isels and liabilities 
(Increase) in other ru.scls 
Increase in other liabil ities 
Increase in provisions 

Cash generated from operations 
Income ta"'l'.es paid 
Net cash inflow from operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible a' 'ct 
Proceeds from property, plant and equipment and intangible a:-.,ct 
Purcha e of inve lments 
Sale of inve::.tmenls 
Intere:.t received on fixed depcsits 
Net cash outflow from investing activities 
Cash flows from financing activities 
Proceeds from funds fr\Jm holding company 
Finance cost paid 
Repayment of lease liabilities 
Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing activities 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the yea r 

Reconciliation of cash a nd cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement 
Cash and ca~h equivalents as per above comprise of the following 

Cash and ca:.h equivalents 
Balances per statement of cash flows 

Summary of significd.nt accounting policies followed by the Company 2 
The accompa nying notes are integral part of the financial statements 
As per our repo11 of even date 

For KKC & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
(formerly Khimji Kunve1ji & Co LLP) 
ICAJ Fim1 Registration Number: I 05146W/W l 00621 

Soorej Kombaht 
Partner 
!CAI Membership Number: 164366 
Pune: 

For period ended For year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31 , 2022 

(18,786.56) ( 12,944.95) 
(18,786.56' ( 12,944.95) 

1,533.38 1,256.27 
( 14.97) (9.94) 
(67.85) (16.16) 
(17.59) (4.86) 
191.87 66.45 

1,189.97 1,253.56 
(1, 171.40) (664. 18) 

1,138.3 1 201.22 
(2,233.38) (1,329.08) 

170.69 232.90 
946.74 647.02 

(1 7,120.79) (11,311.75) 
(540.62) (80.97' 

(17,661.41) (11 ,392.72) 

(3,408.90) (l ,979.93) 
303.58 0.00 

0.00 (550.00) 
0.00 400.00 
5.28 4.86 

(3,100.04) (2,125.07) 

22,000.00 15,000.00 
(191.87) (66.45) 
(337.09) ( 132.06) 

21,471.04 14,801.49 
709.59 1,283.70 

1,599.66 315.96 
2,309.25 1,599.66 

As at March 31, As at March 31 , 
2023 2022 

2,309.25 1,599.66 
2,309.25 1,599.66 

On behalfof the Board of Directors 

~ ~-~ 
Devang Mody Y.Rajagopalan 
Director 
DIN :07794 726 

~ 
Manecsh Shanna 
Finance Head 

Director 
DIN:02997795 



Bajaj Fini;crv Health Limih.'d 

S•ate-ment of ch:Jogt:s in et.1uily for the year ended March 31, 2U23 
(All a 11l1111nt:i;. in INR J"k.hc:, u11 h:c:c nthenv-i:!:.e stafrd) 

Part iculars l\"ote No No of share< (In Amuunt 
lakhsl 

As at Mar•h 3 1, 2U2 I 25 no 25n nn 
ChcU1 •cs in r.:uuitv ;"lh.a r~ i:osni1_HI 10 (a) 

As a t March 3L 2012 250 on 
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Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 
Notes to the financial st atements for the year ended March 31, 2022 

1. The Company overview 

Bajaj Finscrv Health Limited (the "Company"), is a public company limited by shares, domiciled in India 
and incorporated under the provisions of !he Companies Act, 20 13. The Company was incorporated on July 05, 
2019. The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of 'Bajaj f inserv Limited ' (Holding Company). The Company 
is operating in the Health Ecosystem and creates integrated healthcare solutions to improve and manage 
healthcare outcomes with technological intervention. The Company is engaged in busine~s of marketing, 
promoting and selling Healthcare plans/products including preventive healthcare, management of illnc. ~. loyalty 
cards, telemedicine, through online and/or through network of providers I partners. The CTN number of the 
Company is U85320PN2019PLC185286. 

The Registered Office of the company is at Bajaj Auto Limited, Mumbai-Pune Road, Akurdi, Pune, 4 11035, 
Maharashtra, and its Corporate Office is at 4th floor, Phoenix Fountainhead, Off Nagar Road, Vimau Nagar, 
Pune-4110 14, Mahara~htra. 

The financial statements were approved for i:s::.ue in accordance with a re olution of the Dire..:turs on 25th April, 
2022. 

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements 

(i) Basis of preparation 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS"), the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("!he Act"). The Ind AS are pre~cribed under Section 133 of the Act read 
with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Sta ndards) Rules, 2015 a as amended from time to time and 
other relevant provisions of the Act. 

These financ ial s1atements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for ce1tain financial a';:;ets and 
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value. 

Accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods prc;,ented in these fi nancial s tatements. 

The financial statements con e;,pond to the cla-sification provis ions contained in Ind AS 1, "Presentation of 
Fina ncial Statements". for c larity, various items are aggregated in the sta tement of profit and lo"s and balance 
sheet. These items are disaggregated separate ly in the notes to the financ ial statements, where applicable. 

The financial st,1tements are pre::.cnted in Indian Rupees (~), which is a lso the Company's functional cu1Tency 
and all values are rounded to the nearest lacs, unle~s otherwise slated. Due to rounding off, the numbers pre;,ented 
throughout the document may not add up prec isely to the totals and percentages may not precisely reflect the 
absolute figures. 

All assets and liabilities have be.en clas ified as current or non-current as per the Company's nom1al operating 
cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule ITT (Division IT) to the Act. Based on the nature of products and 
the time between the acquisition of a'sets for procc ... ,ing and their reali~ation in cash and cash equivalent<>, the 
Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current classification 
of as,ets and liabilities. 

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern ba~is , as the Management is satis fied that the Company 
shall be able to continue its business for the foreseeable future and no material uncertainty exists that may cast 
s ignificant doubt on the going concern a~:::umption. In making this assc-~ment, the Management has considered 
a wide range of infonnation relating to pre~ent and fu ture conditions, including future projections of profitability, 
cash flows and capital funding available from the Holding company. The outbreak of COVID-I 9 bas not affected 
the going concern as,umption of the Company. 

~ 
./~~ 



(ii) Use of est imates and j udgment 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, 
estimates and a ... ::.umptions that affect the appl ication of accounting pol icies and the reported amounts of as els, 
liabi lities, income, expenses and disclosures. Actual results may differ from those esti mates. 

Estimates ru1d underlying ac;~umptions are reviewed on an ongoing ba~i<;. Accounting estimates are recognised 
in the period in which the estimates are made or revi~ed. Information about significant areas of estimation, 
uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the s ignificant effect on the amounts 
recognised in the financial statements are included in the notes. 

Detailed information about each of these estimates is included in the relevant notes together with information 
about ba is of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements: 

( l) Revenue recognition 
(2) Impairment testing 
(3) DefetTed taxes 
(4) Defined benefit plans and compenc;ated absences 
(5) Useful lives of prope1ty, plant and equipment 
(6) Useful lives of intangible ac;t.ets 
(7) Provision for e~timate toward expected wellness service claims 
(8) Expected Credit Loss 

3. Significant accoun ting p olicies 

i. Revenue Recognition: 

The Company recognizes revenues from contracts with cu tamers, as per Ind AS 11 5 fo llowing five step 
approach: 

(1) identify the contract with a customer, 
(2) identify the performance obligations in the contract, 
(3) detennine the transaction price, 
(4) allocate the trainiction price to the perfom1ance obligations in the contract, and 
(5) recognise revenues when a perfomiance obl igation is satisfied. 

At inception, the Company assc,ses its promise to transfer products or services to a cu~tomer to identify separate 
perfom1ance obligations. The Company applies judgement to determine whether each product or service 
promised to a customer is capable of being distinct, and are distinct in the context of the contract, if not, the 
promised products or services are combined and accounted as a single performance obligation. The Company 
allocates the arrangement considerat ion to separately identifiable performance obligations based on their relative 
stand-alone sell ing price or residual method. Standalone selling prices are detem1ined based on sale prices for 
the components when it is regularly sold separately. In ca es where the Company is unable to det~m1ine the 
stand-alone selling price, the Company uses expected cost-plus margin approach in est imating the stand-alone 
selling price. 

The Company derives revenue mainly fro m the fo llowing sources: 

Bundled Product 

Bundled Product under the nomenclature of AarogyaCare, Swa ' thyacare or its variants is a comprehensive 
offering in the Health ecosystem and comprises benefits such as Insurance offered by inl'urance companies, OPD, 
Laboratory benefit, Loyalty card, accc s to HcalthRx mobile app and website. 

Revenue on product sales are recognised when the cu ~tomer obtains control of the specified product. 

Revenues are shown net of GST and cancellation of policies sold if any. 

Insurance component comprised in the product price is not considered in the revenue as it is sold under the 
~::passt:~ough arrangement between the Company and the Group's insurance Company. 
ssoc/ 

~ 0 
i ~ ses point in time approach to recognise the revenue, since there are no unsatisfied perfom:ance 

C(f CJOl§t~!'.¢ i ?R ending afier sale of product. The control of product is immediately transferred to cu:;tomer at-the 
~ Ac411Ti~d.1> ale fproduct. Company recognises wellne's pay-outs provision on estimate basis. ("),l\f\ · 
-)- o' . ~v' 



Health Prime rider (HPR) 

Health prime rider is a comprehensive offering in the Health ecosystem which is is:. t1ed by one of the group 
in:::urance company and comprises benefits such as OPD, Laboratory benefit, Loyalty card , access to HealthR.x 
mobile app and webs ite. The Company manages these services on behalf of the insurance company. For above, 
agreement is directly entered with group in.::urnnce company 

Pursuant to the te1111s of aiTangement with the insurance company the Company 's perfomrnnce obligation is to be 
obliged over the policy period, the revenue & contract liability emanating from the said arrangement are 
recognized over the period of policy contract.. 

Co-Branded Card I Loyalty card 

Cobranded card, Loyalty card or its variants, offer a small ticket size health management solution, en-compa~sing 
health benefits such as discounts at Outpatient depa1tment (OPD), Pharmacy, Laboratory test e tc. 

A refund liability is measured for all the products and sel\lices at the amount of cons ideration received (or 
receivable) fo r which the entity does not expect to be entitled and such amo unt is deducted from revenue in 
accordance with Ind AS 115. 

The Company as~esses the tinting of the transfer of serv ices to the cu.,tom.er as com.pared to the timing of 
payments to determine whether a signi ficdnt financing component ex i~t~. As a practical expedient, the Company 
does not assess the existence of a s ignificant financing component when the d ifference between payment and 
provision of service is up-to 12 months. If the difference in timing arises for red, ons other than the provision of 
finance to either the customer or the Company, no financing component is deemed to exist. 

Contract asset and liabilities 

The Company clas,ifies its right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as either a receivable or a contract 
asset. A receivable is a right to consideration that is unconditional. A right to cOJr ideration is unconditional if 
only the pa sage of time is requ ired before payment of consideration is due. 

ii. Foreign currency transactions and translation 

Functional and presentationa l currency 

The financial statements are prc~cnted in INR which is al'o functiona l currency o f the Company. 

Transactions a nd ba lances 

Tran~actions in fore ign currencies are initia lly recorded in the functional cnrrency at the exchange rate at the date 
of the tran:;action. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in fore ign cun encies are rehanslated into the functional curreDcy at 
the spot rate of exchange at the reporting date. All differences arising on non- trading activities are taken to other 
income/expense in the Statement of Profit and Lo s. 

Non- monetary items that are mea"ured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated us ing the spot 
exchange rates as at the date of recognition. 

iii. Property, plant and equipment and depreciation Property, 

Plant and Equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are carried at historical cost of acquisition lc ... s accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses, if any, cons istent with the criteria specified in Ind AS 16 'Property, Plant and Equipment'. 

a) Recognition and measurement 

Property , plant and equipment, capital work in progrc s except land are carried at cost ofacl1uisition or construct ion 
as the case may be. le<:s accumulated depreciation and amorti ~ation. Land is carried at cost of acquisition. Cost 

..--:=rRnriscs of the purcha'e price includ ing import duties and non-refundable taxes, and directly attributable expen"es 

0 
S Sinca:r1 to bring the as et to the location and condition nece ' ary for it to be capab le of being operated in the 

oO' ~J ~- ended by the Management. The Compru1y identifies and detemunes cost of each component/ part of the 
u , ~~'11'61cd s ~ tely, _if the ~omponent/ part has a cost w_lu_ch is significant to _the total cost of the a:-s_ct and bas useful 
:;:t. ""'. oJq'[~fl~X 1s~1iatenally different from that of the remamrng a ~set. Changes m the expected useful hfe are accounted 

-;t- fo r o: nging the period or methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates. All 
-.nt er a ir and maintenance costs are recogni ed in the Statement of Profit and Los as incurred. 



b) Depreciation 

The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment over the e-timated useful life on a straight-line bas is 
from the date the a''t'tS are available for use. Depreciation on a'sets added/disposed during the period is provided 
on pro rata ba is with reference to the month in which such ac;:.et is added/disposed. 

Estimates are used for computing a<:,et's expected useful life and expected residual value at the end of its life. 
The estimated useful life is reviewed at Jea<:t aJlllually. 

The estimated ll 'eful life are as follows: 

• Leasehold Improvements - Period of lease 
• Computers - 3 years 

• Others - Furniture, Networking in lallations, Vehicle and Office equipment - 3 to 10 years. 

Leasehold improvement as<:ets are depreciated over the e~timated useful li fe of as:.et or the re levant lease term, 
whichever is lower. 

An asses1>111ent is done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there are any indications that an a et may be 
impaired. If any such indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the as,et I Cash Generdting Uni t 
(CGU) is made. Where the carrying value of the a~c;et I CGU exceeds the recoverable amount, the carrying value 
is written down to the recover<1ble amount 

iv. Intangihle Assets and amortisation 

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured at cost of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible 
assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment Jo,_es, if any. The useful life is estimated 

based on number of factors including the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic 
factors such as the stability of the industiy and known technological advances and the level of maintenance 
expenditures required to obtain the expected future cash flows from the assets. The estimated useful life of 
amortisable intangibles is reviewed and where appropriate are adjusted, annually. 

For internally developed intangibles, such as software, platforms, applications, expenditure pertaining to research 
is charged to the Statement of profit and lo<:s. Development co'ts are capitalised as an intangible as~ct if it can 
be demonstrated that the project is expected to generate future economic benefits, it is probable that those future 
economic benefits will flow to the entity and the costs of the aq;et can be mea,ured reliably, else it is charged to 

the Statement of profit and !o,.s. 

The intangible assets are amortised using the straight-line method over a period of five years, which is the 
management's estimate of its useful life. The useful life of an intangible a~::.et is reviewed at each financial year 
end and adjusted pro"pectively. 

An assc<,ment is done at each Balance Sheet date to a"certain whether there is any indication that an ac;c;et may 
be impaired. If any such indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of asset is determined. If the 
canying va lue of relevant asset is higher than the recoverab le amount, the carrying value is written down 

accordingly. 

v. Financial instruments 

a) Non-derivative fmancial instruments: 

Non-derivative financial instruments con~ist of: 

• Financial assets, which include cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, employee and other advances, and 
non-current as ets; Financial a ...... ets are derecogniscd when substantial risks and rewards of ownership of the 
financial a;, ... et have been transferred . ln cases where substantial risks and rewards of ownership of the financial 
as,cts are neither transferred nor retained, financial as<:cls are derecognised only when the Company bas not 



.!!.: Cash and cash equivalents 

The Company's cash and cash equivalents con:-i-t of cash on hand and in banks and demand deposits with banks, 
which can be withdrawn at any time, without ptior notice or penalty on the principal. 

For the purposes of the cash fl ow statement, cash and ca~h equivalents include ca ·hon hand, in banks and demand 
deposits with banks, and are considered part of the Company's cash management sy tem . 

.!!,, Investments 

Financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or lo~s (FVTPL) : 

Financia l ai;;;cts at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each repo1ting period, with any gains or losses 
aris ing on re-measurement recognised in Statement of profi t and lo:.-s The gain or loss on disposal is recognised 
in Statement of profit and los~. Interest income is also recognised in Statement of profit and loss for FVTPL 
in~truments . 

.£:. Other financial assets: 

Other financial assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or detem1inable payments that are not quoted 
in an active market. They arc presented as c urrent as. els, except for those maturing later than 12 months after 
the reporting date which are pre:.cnted as non-current assets. The"se are initially recognised at fair value and 
subsequently measured at amo1tised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses. These 
comprise trade receivables and other ;i;;, ets. 

Q,. Trade and other pavables 

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value, and subsequently ca1Tied at am01tised cost using 
the effective interest method. For these financial instmments, the canying amounts approximate fa ir value due 
to the short-term maturity of these i n~trnments. 

vi. Equity 

a) Share capital 

The authorised share capital of the Company as at March 31, 2022 is Rs 500 Lakhs divided into 50 Lakhs equity 
shares of Rs 10 each. Every holder of the equity shares, as reflected in the records of the Company as of the date 
of the shareholder meeting shall have one vote in re, pect of each share held for all matters submitted to vote in 
the shareholder meeting. 

b) Retained earnings 

Retained earnings comprises of the Company's undistributed earnings after taxes. 

vii. Impairment 

fil Financial :issets 

The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit loss associated with its financial as,,ets 
carried at amortised cost for e.g. deposits, trade receivables and bank balances. The impairment methodology 
applied depends on whether there has been a significant increa e in credit risk and if so, assess the need to provide 
for the same in the Statement of P rofit and Loss. The Company fo llows simplified approach for recognition of 
impaim1ent lo s allow:ince on trade receivable.s 

The application of simplified approach does not require Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it 
recognises impa irment loss allowance b:ised on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial 
recognition. 

For recognition of impairment lo:::s on other fina ncial a~scts and risk exposure, the Company deternunes that 
whether there bas been significant increa, c in the credit risk since initial recognition. lf credit risk has not 
increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment losses. If, in a subsequent period, credit 

'SI e instrument improves such that there is no longer significant increa<:e in the credit risk since initial 
'O · o · i'O_% hen the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL. The 12-

C\Y Char ,'= r~d ~ \ 
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month ECL is a portion of li fetime ECL which results from default events that are po~'> ible within 12 months 
after reporting date. 

ECL impairment loss allowance (or rever&al) recognized during the period is recognized as expense/ income in 
the statement of Profit and Lo'"· This amount is reflected under the head 'Other expenses' in the statement of 
Profit and Lo'"· The balance sheet prc::.entation for various financial instruments is described below: 

Financial a<.sets mea,ttred at amortised cost and revenue receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e. as 
an integral part of the measurement of tho e as<:cts in the ba lance sheet. Until the a<:set meets write off criteria, 
the Company does no t reduce impairment allowance from the gro.;s canying amount. 

hl Non - financial a.;~ets 

The Company as<.csses long-lived ac;sets such as property, plant and equipment and acquired intangible asi:cts 
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an a.;,i.ct or 
group of ac;:.ets may not be recoverable. lf any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable 
amount of the asset or group of assets . 

viii. Employee benefits 

a) Defined Benefit Plans 

The Company participates in various employee benefit plans. Pen~ions and other post-employment benefits are 
clac;sified as defined benefit plans. Under a defined benefit plan, it is the Company's oblige:1tion to provide agreed 
benefits to the employees. T he related actuarial and invcc;tment risks are borne by the Company. The prc:.cnt 
value of the defined benefit obligations is calculated by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit 
method. 

Re-mea,urement comprising actuarial gains or lo,scs and the return on plan as~cts (excluding interest) are 
immediately recognised in olher comprehen~ive income, net of taxes and permanently excluded from profit or 
lo,s. Instead net interest recognised in profit or loss is calculated by applying the discount rate used to mea.-.u re 
the defined benefit obligation to the net defined benefit liability or a' ct. The actual return on the plan a<-... cts 
above or below the discount rate is recoguised as part of re-mca. ttrement of net defined liability or iissct through 
other comprt:hensive income, net of taxes. 

The Company has the fo llowing employee benefit plans: 

a) Gratuity 
Payment for pre::.ent liabili ty of future payment of gratuity is being made to approved giatuity fund, which fu lly 
covers the same under Cash Accumulation Policy and Debt fund of the Life Insurance Corporation oflndia (LIC) 
and Bajaj Allianz Life Insurance Company Ltd. (BALIC). However, any deficit in plan as~cts managed by LTC 
and BALIC as compared to the liiibility ba~ed on an independent actuiirial valuation is recognized as a liability. 

The liability or as,ct recognized in the balance sheet in re pect of defined benefi t gratuity plans is the present 
value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The 
defined benefi t obligation is calculated amrnally by actuaries using tbe projected unit credit method in conformity 
with the principles and manner ofcompulation specified in lnd AS 19. 

The net intere::.t cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefi t obligation 
and the fa ir value of plan a'~ets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. 

Remeasurements as a rc::.ult of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial a,,.umptions are recognized in 
other comprehensive income. 

b) Defined contribution plans 

The Company contributes to two defined contribution pl::ins for its employees: 



The Company recognises contribution payable to these fund/ schemes as an expenditure when an employee 
renders the related service. lfthe contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet 
date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as a liability after 
deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services 
received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognised as an a<::.ct to the extent that the prepayment 
will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund. 

c) Compensated ahscnces 

The employees of the Company are entitled to compern~ated absences. The employees can carry fo1ward a portion 
of the unutilised accumulating co111pe11-ated abs~nces and utilise it in future periods. The Company records an 
obligation for compen~ated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that increases this 
entitlement. The Company meaqires the expected cost of compensated absences as the additional amount that 
the Company expects to pay because of the unused entitlement that hac: accumulated at the end of the reporting 
period. The Company recognises accumulated compen~ated absences based on actu arial valuation u ing the 
projected unit credit method. Non-accumulating compen~nted absences are recognised in the period in which the 
absences occur. The Company presents the leave as a cmTent liability in the balance sheet as it docs not have an 
unconditional right to defer its settlement beyond 12 months after the reporting date. 

d) Employee stock option scheme 

Stock options are granted to eligible employees under Employee Stock Option Scheme, 20 18 as formulated by 
Bajaj Finserv Limited ('"Holding Company"). The scheme is administered through Bajaj Finserv Employee Stock 
Option Trust ("The Trust"). The mode of settlement of the scheme is through equity shares of the holding 
company. 

The options so granted are accounted for based on fair value basis in accordance with the "Guidance Note on 
Accounting for Employee Share based Payments" issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
("!CAI"). The fa ir value at grant date is determined using the Black Scholes model which takes into account the 
exercise price, the term of the option, the share price at grant date and expected volatility of the underlying share, 
the expected dividend yield and the risk-free interest rate for the term of the option. Further, any cost of such 
options, which is reimbursed to the holding company is amortised over the vesting period with a charge to the 
Profit and Lo:.s Account. 

ix. Provisions and contingent liabilities 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or con~tructive) as a re:.ult of past 
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits wi ll be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount to be recognised as provision is t11e best 
estimate of the consideration required to settle the pre:.ent obligation at the end of the reporting period, 
considering the risks and unce11ainties surrounding the obligation. When the likelihood of outflow of res0urccs 
is remote, no provision or disclo~ure is made. 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a po~~ ible obligation or a pre~ent obligation that may, but 
probably wi ll not, require an outflow of re ources. When the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no 
provision or disclosure is made. 

The Company accrues the estimated cost of provisions of wellne.;s benefit at the time when the revenue is 
recognised. The accruals are based on the Company's experi~nce, benefits offered in the product and industry 
practices. Provision amount for OPD, diagnostic, telemedicine or similar healthcare is derived based on the 
respective c.omponents considered in product pricing. Provisioning amounts are tracked periodically and actual 
utilisations, if any, are adjusted against provision amount. Jf the customer docs not utilize the benefit, the unused 
provi~ion is reversed once the product period expires or at the end of contract term. 

Finance cost 

Finance cost comprise notional interest cost on lease liabilities as per TND AS 11 6. Gain or loss arising on re­
measurement of financial assets at FVTPL. 

x. Other income 

The Company recognises income on ac.crual basis. 



Income tax 

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expell5e is recognised in the statement of profit and 
loss. 

a) Current income tax 

0.JJTent income tax for the cun ent periods are meac;ured at the amount expected to be recovered by the taxation 
authorities based on the taxable income/ (lo<;S) for the period. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the 
current tax amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted as at the repo1ting date and applicable for 
the period. The Company offsets cun·ent tax <h ' Cts and current tax liabil ities, where it has a legally enforceable 
right to set off t11e recognised amounts and where it intends either to seule on a net bac;is, or to realise the a~sct 

and liabil ity simultaneously. 

b) Deferred income tax 

Deferred income tax, if any, is recognised using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax ac;c;ets and 
liabilities are recognised for deductible and ta'<able temporary differences arising between the tax ba~e of asc;ets 
and liabi lities and their can-ying amount in financial statements, except when the defeJTed income tax arises from 
the initial recognition of an asset or liabi lity in a tran<:action and affects neither accounting nor ta able profits or 
loss at the time of the transaction. 

Deferred income tax a~"ets are recognised to the extent it is probable that ta'Xable profit will be available against 
which the deductible tempora1-y differences and the can-y forward of unused tax credits and unused tax los cs 
can be util ised. The can-ying amount of defeITed income tax a<:c;ets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced 
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the 
defell"ed income tax asset to be utilised. 

Deferred income tax a~sets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the a~set 
is realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 
The Company offsets defeITed income tax a ... ~cts and liabilities , where it has a legally enforceable right to offset 
current tax assets against cuJTent tax liabilitie , and they relate to taxes levied by the same ta'Xation authority on 
either the same taxable entity, or on different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the current tax 
liabilities 

xi. Earnings per share 

Ba<:ic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or ki..-.s for the period attributable to equity shareholders 
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period adjusted for treasm-y shares held. 
Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or lo--s for the period attributable to equity shareholders 
by the weighted-average number of equity and dilutive equiva lent shares outstanding during the period. 

xii. Cash flow statement 

Cash flow are repo1ted us ing the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of 
tran actions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or ace ma ls of past or future operating cac;h receipts or payments 
and item of income or expenses associated wi th investing or fi nancing cash fl ows. The ca h from operating, 
investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated. The amendment to Ind AS 7, require entities 
to provide disclosures about changes in thei r liabi lities arising from financing activities, including both changes 
arising from ca;;h flows and non-cash changes (such as foreign exchange gains or los.<:es). 

xiii. Segmen t repor ting 

Operating segments are repo1ted in a manner con:-istent with the internal reporting provided to the 
Core Management Committee which includes the Managing Director who is the Chief Operating 
Decision Maker. The Company operates only in one segment in Health ecosy~tem and has operntions only in 
India, with same risk, rewards and returns, hence, the Segment reporting is not pre.sented. 

xiv. Leases 



Company as a lessee 

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all lea;;es. The Company recognises 
lease liabi lities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying a~~ets. 

a) Right-of-use a ets 

The Company recognises right-of-u<;e a.;sets at the commencement date of the lea'e (i.e., the date the underlying 
a ... sct is aYailable for use). Right-of-use a''ets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and 
impainnent l o~ .... es, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use a~~ets 

includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct co~ls incuned, and lease payments made at or 
before the commencement date. Right-of-use as,ets are depreciated on a straight-line bas is over the lease term. 
The right-of-use as,ets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in para 6. Impainnent of 
non-financial a .... t.ets. 

b) Lease Liabilities 

At the commencement da te of the lease, the Company recognises lea'e liabilities measured at the pre:.ent va lue 
of lea·e payments to be made over the le::ise term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in 
substance fi xed payments), variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to 
be paid under residual value guarantees. 

In calculating the pre_cnt va lue oflea e payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease 
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the leac;e is not readily detenninable. After the 
commencement date, the amount of leac;e liabi lities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced 
for the lease payments made. 

As a practical expedient in para 15 oflnd AS 116, Company bas not separated non-lease components from lease 
components, and instead account for each lease component and any a,· ociated non-lease components as a single 
lease component 

xv. Fair value measurement 

The Company mea.,ures financial instnnnents, such as, inve ·tment in mutual funds at fai r value at each balance 
sheet date. Fair value is the p1ice that would be received to sell an a~set or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market partic ipants at the measurement date. 

The fair value mea~urement is bao:ed 011 the pre~umption that the transaction to sell the asset or ttansfer the 
liabi lity takes place either in the principal market for the ac;set or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, 
in the mo t advantageous market for the as,et or liability. The p1 incipal or the most advantageous market must 
be acce:--.ible by the Company. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use 
when pricing the as~et or liability, ac:~mning that market participants act in their economic best interest. The 
Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are 
available to measure fair va lue, maxim.ising the use of relevdnt observable inputs and minimizing the use of 
unobservable inputs. 

All ac;.;ets and liabilities for wh.ich fa ir value is mea">ured or di~closed in the financial statements are categorised 
within the fa ir value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fai r 
value measurement as a whole: 

Level l - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 
d irectly or indirectly observable 

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowe~t level input that is significant to the fair value mea::urement 
is unobservable 

.-, 



For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined cla-;scs of as. ets and liabilities on the 
ba-:is of the nature, characteristics and ril"ks of the a-;, et or liabil ity and the level of the fair value hierarchy as 
explained above. 



Baj aj Fin<erv Health l.imiled 

Nutes to Financial s t.ie111cnts for the yea r ended March 3 1, 2023 
(All am1•unt' in INR lr.kh<, unk s <•l h~rwi,o , 1. 11-J) 

Note 3: Property, plant and c11uipment 

Pa r ti<ulars Computers Furniture and 

Fixtu res 

Gru" Blnck 
A~ at March 3 1, 2021 161.26 60. 11 
Add i1i.1r•< 293.14 27.38 
DiSf't•....Ull\/ nm\'~mC"•ll -
As a t March 31 2022 454.40 87.49 
Addi1i, .n, 213.25 22 ' 0 
Di(J"h",ll~/ melvcmcnl 17.69 82.98 

As a t Marc h 31 2023 649.96 27.01 

Accumula ted Depreciation 
As at M<trch 3 1 2021 4 1. 19 8 '8 
Addi ti1>11< 98.17 7 .89 
D i'f'l-h J k / mo"t-m t"nl< - -
As at March 31. 2022 139.36 16.47 

Add itions 176.28 3 13 

DiSl'l"dt..;/ m\)\tcrnen1c; 7S3 17.83 

As a t Marc h 3 1 2023 307.81 1.97 

Net B lock 
Net bonk value as at March 31 , 2022 3 15.04 71.02 

Net bnok value as at March 3 1 2023 342.15 25.04 

Note 4: Right of Use J\«et 
(All an,..unt< in lNR lakh<, unk •s Nhcrwi>c ~1a1cd) 

Partic ulars LcHsehold Total 
Pn:rni~es 

Gross Blo"k 
As at Mal\.h 3 1. 2021 54-1 '6 544.56 

Additi'' "' 1,151 <)~ l ,H1 ll8 

Di(r,..-....,J1~1 movl!mi..:nt 187.96 187.96 

As a t March 3 1. 2022 1.7 10.58 1.710.58 

Addi1i,-,n, 1,078.94 1 ,07~.94 

Disl"l\•-mJc;;/ Tl'h,1\ ...:n,enc 52-1 no 524 no 
As at March 3 1, 2023 2,265.52 2.265.52 

Accum ula ted Ocprccial inn -
As at March 31, 202 1 181.54 18 1.54 

Addi I inn< 16~ ~2 I n~ ~2 

0i..;ru....i1,/ m,1vem enl4' 31.27 33.27 

As a t M arch 31 2022 3 15.09 3 15.09 

Add ii inn< 411n44 460 44 

Di~n.. .. hal"' n'O\·emenl' 279.54 279.54 

As a t M arch 3 1 2023 495.99 495.99 

Net Block -
Net bouk value as at March 31, 2022 1.395.49 1,395.49 

Net book value as at March 31 , 2023 1,76953 1,7695 3 

Leasehold Plant and omcc Vehicl~< Total 
lmpro,•emcnts Machinery equipment 

IR~ 28 73.04 54.20 IR 34 5~1.23 

67.62 20. 17 3'W 171 R6 61' '6 
- - - - -

2~1.90 93.21 89.59 190.20 I 168.79 

- - 23 08 117.38 376.21 
253 oo 92.3 1 52.28 - 499. 16 

- 0.90 60.39 307.58 1,045.84 

5 1.71 18. 13 16.42 0 87 136 90 
4R 59 lR 14 15 .70 12.64 201.33 

- - - - -
100.30 36.47 32. 12 13.51 338.23 

12.99 5.07 12.15 27.53 237.35 
11 3.29 41.23 29.02 - 209.20 

- 0.3 1 15.25 41.04 366.38 

153.60 56.74 57.47 176.69 830.56 

- 0.59 45. 14 266.54 679.46 



Bajaj Fin<et-v Hea lth Limiled 

Nnles to Financial stat~menls for the year ended March 31, 2023 
(All anMunt, in INR lakh~, 1111k s nthe™ bl.! , 1#1h:<l) 

Note S: I ntangible a«els 
(All am .. unl< in INR lakh<, unlc•s oth~n' i.~ sta led) 

Parciculars Cnrnput.r 

snfl " are 

Gru;~ Rinck 
As at M.ir~li 3 1, 202 1 14.6 1 
Addilh'"' 0.45 
Dil\f"\-''Jl..:I m,,\.emc:nt -
As at March 31 2022 15.06 
Addili"n~ -
Oi;;.P\,"-')"/ mo,~m'-=nl -
As at March 31 2023 15.06 
Accumulated Amortisaliun 
As ac Mar~h 3 I, 2021 6.37 
Addil i<•flS 5.01 

DisD'-°"' .. d'"'' mo""...ncnt -
As at March 31 2022 11 .~8 

Addi I kins 3 '2 
Oi<:f't"-•11~/ mo\.cmcnt -
As a t March 31, 2023 14.90 

Nee Blnck 

Net book value as at March 31, 2022 3.68 
Net book value as at March 3 1 2023 0.16 
-No rcvalul!1i1111 in cu~nt or pre\l iot~s ) 1.4\r 
•[nt,1ngible :t• ~I < under dcvd,•rmcnt arc in t.ornally g~n.rakd l I< 

lolernally lntangihle T otal 

g•oc raled 3''Cts under 
inta ngible c.lc"dopu1ent* 
a~<et 

l ,R37.25 201.29 2,0'3.15 
1.294.62 - 1,295 07 

201.29 (201.2~) -
3 131.16 - 3.348.22 
2,981 ~2 - 2,981 82 

42.10 - 42.10 
6 272.J!R - 6,287.94 

3\19.79 - 40" 16 
g;n 02 - l<XK 03 

- - -
1 282.8 1 - 1.294.19 

832.07 - g;, '9 

28.48 - 28.48 
2,0R6.40 - 2.101.30 

2,050k15 - 2,054.03 
~ 186.48 - 4,JRl\.64 

PlU ... uc.tnt to the ccchnic.t1l i:1"''4:'11' 111cnt pcrf..rmed by the 111s1nllg..:111cnt ofu~~ful life of the i11tun~itilcs during the }'~Jr, the Ct,mp"oy h:l(; chan~<d its u,<:ful life of 
internally gencrated i11tongihle a <IS m•m 3 } c:.lfa to 5 y,;.uS , Cnn_,,que nl to thi• change, the d"!'r<•iati .-1 e\ren<e in the >t•tement Of pn•fit & [, .. for the peri•'\l is 

lu>vcr by Rs 779.37 lnkh< and cum.· -ronJi11g the me..,~•~mcnl in the iut.111gihk l• ts in Che Ba l""'c $heel for che peri<od is highor by Rs 779.37 lakh• 

This sr"~~ ha• been intenlirn1o lly left hla11k 



Bajaj Fi1P~ct'\' Hen1rh l.intilf'd 
:"flies 10 Fioaoc;..1 shHtnients for the ynr ended March 31. 2023 
(All e m1•unl< in INR bl..h111i: 11111<- ., •l l~i.1t.: >UIC"tl) 

:\olc 6(1): Other Fi111111dal A.l\4'fs- Non-cuncnl 
(I In .,,tirN. (°('n .. ;J.,, r.,,d G• .. •J} 

Pnr1i, ... 11lftrs 

<:1,,.,,uritvd< ..,. ... ; 1.; 

TtllJ11 Or her fln:ttti~fal a'~~t 

Note 6(h) : O lhcr Fim111 tht l i\s:M'IS - curn:nl 
(1 lro ..., ur .. -d. ('1111 .. id".,,J r;.._ .. .J) 

Pa rtieu l11rs 

ft.1 111' dl;"f'\.-~'il wirh or i!:'.inol n\Jh1rityof mt..,n!' 1hun 3 m .. ntli..• 
Ot}\cr rin.in~ i"l .i.• ..... u 
TolHI Othtr Fio~n cial u,et 

A s al March 31. As at March 3 1. 
201J 2012 

214.14 JM•• 
214. 14 J06 RR 

As:a1Ma1cll 3t. Asat M2rchJI, 
2023 2022 

2500 2'iiOQ 
12-30 
37.30 25.00 

•Qf whi...lt Rs. 25 la~h r~rfoins to ~h..·rt t~ dc("'•"ir pi.;lc d wit.h the b •nL-. !.i ,.lu1ity I•'"" 1rJ s 1'.,nk 6uotr-Jnrct 

Parti\"ulars 

~ l ulu•I Fund• (Al f air Yalu• lhrou2h P&L) 
Ouolcd 
7\,;.7,10 (M t1 r1..h 31. ]fll.!: 5 ,1 .c\<i.)5) tmi1 .. 1n H ='HC Ct1<h Fund- G,11\dh O i1 -.;d 

4 Mt" A~ lMmh) I, .21).11: 4/1M x~} on;t~ in Ba.nJh.in Li~u~I Fund - (i111wtl1 -Di~I 

Pl3l1 
Tuh1J (mut11 1JI fund<) 

Ae:,gr""'5,1t1;" '-"'>- ·~ \."ft luc: of "luvkd in"+c-..tlll('11ts 

Ar_fh.·~.ne INt Ir.cl >va lue o( qu,,h:d in '- l:•Hl'C"nt< 

Nute 6(d): Tndc R<'cci"nblcs 

Partit·u l_ors 

T r-1.lc r .ch&h lcc 
Rn'"it.at't l~s fio1m rcl~lcJ rartiie~ 

Tolo) rircri, • hlfoc 

Parcie-ulars 

~0.Uf"C"t~ (•~l1. .. ;,lc1c;d g1 .. 1J 

lln•n urt"d. C.•n .. idcn.:J ~\~"1 

Trade R~<"i""Jhl~< whkh htt•..: \J'-.;r< ._.: in crcJ ir rick 
Tr~~ R..,,, c: • .,hfe< - c1 .,,Jit i111r-: :,~ 

l1 l\f\1:n11c111 Allt••• •Ol" {~1J .. .,. ,r,1.c: forlu<l anJ J....11htli1J J~hh) 

f Iii• '\. 11~. ( n•h;Jcr'°J £.'" ,J 
T r<uk Rt. i'-t.1hl1..·c \\ hi'"h h.H~ ;,i~nifr.,, .. ull i11.,,n:- c in cr.,.J it risk 
T r, .• le R"'-"i'!lMt'" - 'rcJit ionl'lo>: rcJ 

Tolal Trade rccci"ahte'5 

Trade tctchahlcc a~cing 5,·hc.:du lc 

r artin1l ... rs 

Tndt rrcch..,11le~ net of Jmpairn"ttnt Allo""ance 

P1u1kuh1rs 

As at Mar ch JJ, As at l\brch 31, 
202J lDll 

275.74 
275 74 

271 74 

As 21 March 31. 
20H 

l.Y~" 1') 

131.22 
2..0nO RJ 

As :al Ma1ch 31. 

2023 

41)0 ".17 
1.~HfiRI 

11 1.56 
2.J6' .34 

2•1n 05 
111.56 
4025 1 

2 060.Jn 

~ot ll uc 

41 o~ 
1.sn.;9 

1.924.~2 

Kot dur 

77~ R:9 

77?.89 

lnO 78 

As !I f i\hre-h 31, 
2012 

1(h4 '3 
IQ OQ 

88Q43 

As :at i\la.-ch 3 1, 
2022 

J57.63 
8'76.75 

1.334.38 

44• 05 

444.•5 
Blj•.43 

31 Mal'<h 2023 
Leu than 6 6 ft'l.ilafbor;-
m11ntb,. · ~'\:.:tr 

35:? 07 oi;o 
7u·12 

425 09 0 nO 

J I March 2022 
Leu th;1n 6 6mnnthJ-
mun fhs l~car 

4JV $l'\ 8.78 
101.49 J.55 
5!'0.34 10.33 

1-2 }•• rs Toto I 

1.27 Jflll 07 
J.'lo\r1 RI 

111.56 111 56 
112.RJ 2.•6'.34 

JfY> 51 

2-060 8' 

l -2yurs To11I 

4~7.63 
n •2 87~ 7j 

0.82 I '34.38 
444.•5 
• 8•.43 



Baj nj Fin«rv Henlfh Limited 
Notes to Financial stattments for the ) c ar ended March 3 1, 2023 
(All ::.11wunt"' in INR l\tkh(. unk Cllhc:rwb{' .;;1.1rcd) 

Nole 6(e) Cash nnd cas h c4ui•·ulcnts 

Par ticula rs 

Bal11 n'-'-::. with b:tukt.: 
- in cuncnt \l\. \. •-.unl.;;, 

D tt"1• .. ff, '-' ith ori~i na l ru;iturity ofJ..;-.'( thottn tluee "' ••n1h1; 

Total ca<h nnd ca<h equivalents 

Note 7: Unrecogni, cd Ocrer rcd tax a••cls 

Partic ulars 

o crerred tax lia hllities 
On ""'""1vl)f of timing differc-n .. c_,, in: 
Defined hcnr fi l pl81" prvvi, ioi>< • OCI 
Fixed rt'\.C't· iinpacl of def1tc-.:iati1•tl/ i1m1lrti'f1li1111 ch .• rgi.;.d fur finan"·ial rcpl•rling 

pufl".•"e 
Fair WtluJti,,,, of mutual l\Jn l.l s ir1cluJing FMP 
Deftrred tux s~~rts 

R ti..r._l mized to the ~\tent of Dcferri:d tax fo•hiiity 
Ner dererred tax l liahililvl/ accct 

As at March As at ~ lurch 

3 1 2023 31 . 21112 

1 /i.O R5 1.5~0 ~6 

1.228.40 . 
2.309.25 1.599.66 

Ra lancc Sh•« I 
As a t March As a t March 
3 1. 2013 3 1. 2022 

(5l 'il) ( l.34) 
(442.7 1) (1'" 01) 

( 1.95) ( l.95) 

498. 19 16R '10 
. . 

Shllcm4..'nt of 1ront and lu.s:s 
As a t Ma rch As at March 
3 1, 2023 3 1. 2022 

52.19 . 
277.70 SR.16 

o no 1.95 

(329.8'o' ) (90. 10) 
. . 

111e Comrany off ... d.s tnx 11 ..c:~ and liahiliti""1;; if .rnd ooly if it ha~ J. leg.1 lly en f..1r\ CJh le right co set ofT i.:urr..-.01 Lax :i. ts and turrent ta.'< liahil iries <mJ the 
d.:fcned ta~!\ ~ts .;ind dtrerrcd tax liahilit i~ rel:Hc to in1..-un1e ta\cs le\lic:d by the -...1me lax 3utl.t1rily. 0t"fen-Gd tax :i. ·'.s are rn.1..•gni .. i;d for unu ... cd tax 
h)-,.,..:s to the e'tcnt that it is probdblc that ti,atilc pri, fi t will be 3\ dilahlc 3g..,i1h l which the lo "'' 1.-t.tn be utili ..... d. Sit!,nifo .. nnt 1l 1._1fl<,gcme 1H judgcm~nt is 
r~~uircd to dl.'. l\.'"::fminc the 31\l('Unt of deft."'ffcd. UX 11 ·b that '-drl be Tu~•tJli,J, b1"4:d U("'\f'I thr likely tirning Jnd the level Of future 14,.,hle pro\f.t< ff'~clhcr 
wilh future tux planrillg $.lrtlfcg:cs. 

Note 8: O ther non-current a0>els 

As at Ma rch As al Morch 
Particulars 

3 1 2023 31. 2022 

GST c1"'1it r.-civablc 1,957. 13 1,476 l5 
P1c:p,1yme11t to gratuity fu nd loR RR 59.8 1 
PrCf'ldvrncnt lu\Va1J sh1uc. hil. .. cd Od..,ment <Rcfrr nole 27) 3l1.78 248.93 

Total other onn t:urrent ac,rts 2,459.79 1,785 09 

Nole 9: Olher current • " els 

As at Ma<ch As a r Ma rch 
Particulnrs 

3 1 2023 3 1. 2022 

P•<'!'• id e~ren"'4 5•<l.97 219.6 1 

Pr.')>llytncn1 t.Na1J share b••<d paymenl (R,f« null' 27) 4~0 ' 0 20' 97 

Surplicr a<l v~nt.."s• 1 .3 ~0 '17 391 07 

GST d<r<--il< 42.45 66 ~6 

Tola I other current •• •t is 2,443.89 8H5.2 1 



Bajaj l'in<erv Health Limll<d 
Nntes to Flnoncial stutemtnt< for the ) t ar ended J\larch 31 , 2023 

(All •m'""''' in !NR lakh< unlc<> oll..-f\'i>< <lated) 

Nole 10: Equity share cop;lnl and other equity 

l O(n) Equity shore capital 

Authorised. h~ued, SuJl'§cribed and onid uo eouih' share caoital 
Particulars As a t Jlfarch 31, 

2023 
Auth1-.ri"'t'd 
s n on,ooo «1uity sh• res of Rs l o each ;;no.no 

ls)utd sub1oc1 iftt:d and full v oairl un 
2\0n.oun «1ui1y ''""<s of Rs 10 ••-'•(PY 25,on,fH11J 2sn no 

le<tuitv •l..,r,;>) 

2sn.no 

As nl March 3 1, 
2022 

son.no 

25'1 00 

2sn no 

Ill Rtconclllalion of the shares ouMu11dio2 at the be2inoin2 and at the e nd of the , ·.ar 
Particula rs Numher of Equity shore 

shares (in l•kh<) C'Rpllal 

(par \'Olue) 

As at M arch 31, 202 1 25 2sn.no 
Et1uity >horc car;tal i --u<d. ~ul>-·rih.:d a11d fiJlly J"lid up - -
Uu(ini! lhe '.;;Jr 
As at Match 31. 2022 25 250.nO 
Equ;ty ,h.irc c11paa1 ;,,11cd, sul»~rihed a nd nilly p.i;J up -
du• in~ the year 
As at Marc h 31. 2023 25 2sn.no 

Terms nnd rights attached to equity shores 
Eltuity sht.1r-"'"S ha\~ a par \f.fluc oflNR 10. They cntillc the holder to pa11i .... ip<llC in dj\ .. jJ"nJ .. , ;rnd to .. har\,. in the r1· 0\,.~\.ds Of \1,ojoJiug up the \.t'lmrany in pr11 f'M\rt i11 n to the 
ru11nl~r of~nd anl<1Uf1I) pd id on the sh..ir..:-s held. 
E"'cry hol<lcr of e"luity ~lld1C"S p rc~C'T'lt =it il n-cetiri:-J in J'Cf"'," or by p••''Y· is c:ntitled to noc \,11<, n11d up11n a po11 '='•"· h =-h .• r~ is en1itled to ,1ne vole. 

(II) Shares of the comonnv held by hnldino cnmoanv 

Particulars As at March 31 , As at March 31, 
2023 (in lnkhs) 2022 (in lakh<) 

B,1jaj fjn .. .:-rv Lim1tcd 25 25 
llin1meJi..ite ond ul1ima1e hnlUinl! " ''lrTIO.imv) 

(Ill) Detail~ of ~hurchnldcrs holdin.t!. mnrc th.an 5~~ sharC's in the comoaov 

Particulars As ot March 3 1 2023 As nt Mooch 31. 2022 
Number of ~~ holding Numher of %~ holding 

shares (in lnkh<) shar e< (in lakh<) 

8;,j•~ Fin .. ~tv Limited 25 J ()f1"~ 25 l 111J% 
lli111n1eJiuh: :inJ ulli.11-vtte fwlJ;11g 1,...-11fllf't)nv) 

iv) Delai1s of nromuler sh ~~rthnfdin2 

Prnrnokr n11mc As at March 31. 2023 As al March 31 2022 
Nun>her of o/o hnhfing "/o chnnge Numh~r of o/o holding 1Vo change 
shares (in lakh<) during the )'ellr shares (In lakh•) during the )ear 

B;,jdj Fi11'\-rv Li111ilcd 25 100% O"' ,. 25 100% o•' ,. 
1 c;mm~Ji1tfc .1n.l 11l1i1·Jl,;ll1c;: h('lll'lin'1: i..l'ITTf'11rw) 

I O(b) Re,erves and surplus 

Particulars As at ~larch 31 , As at March 3 1, 
2013 2022 

Rct.i incd CMnin>1' (39.073.79) t20.487.9XJ 
Total r eserves and surplus oo 073.79) (20,487.98) 

R . d ~tame earnln\!s 
Parliculars As at Match 31, As nt March 3 1, 

2023 2022 
OJ".·ning halJn..e (2" J87.9g) (7,471. 1 l) 
Net pr .. fil/ (1 .. -,) for lhe pcri .. J (18.7R,; ~") ( 12,944 .95) 
fft"nts ofolher c11mr11:h.;n .. i"'c itn,,1.1mc rc""S":'cd 
di1 .... d ly in 1cr.tinc:d e ... ming.s 
· Rcnle.a,urc.ment~ of ri•'H:mrl,1yn-tcot bendit 2110 75 (71.92) 
ot:-i1; ~,.1.1'4 1n net of tax 

Total Retained earnln.!lS <39.073.791 120,487.9R\ 

1 O(c) l ridruments eti tirely in equity 
Particulars As at March 3 1, As at March 31. 

2023 2022 
Op<iting oal.,occ 23.7'0110 s.1sn oo 
Add: Add;1;, 1115 d11,-ing the y1,;,1r 22 n1111 no 15.111111 no 
Clo,;ncr balance 45.7~n_no n .1sn no 



RJ1j;ij filN'f\' lll'lh h 1.i nl ilo-d 

N11t1'1: In fi111•n•·bl ~bl•f!ll"ot' for lht )Ur frHINI M• rch Jl.1013 
C.All 111r . .. 1r•i. In INR ! t i, .. un}-'in • .tt.._ ~i-.. •l.t. h 

Cllm11t i~ -.. liahililin; 
N"-' ('1un•1-.r '~•: li1hili1:("C 

T ollll 

Fi lW"' ( "• .... ,~ dvri"l: ll'..: i""*;,iJ 

r""'"'''' "'f l... lia1'-ili1i .... 
Tur:.I 

Asa1 ;\h11 chJI. Ai•l '.\ h ....:.h.J I, 
2nJ1 10'2 

3 ~"3 ('14 J.00 17 

I 4M JI 974 .ti"; 

As~' ;u,_,.,b 31. 
20! 1 

I ," ... -; ~ 

1,r.10 ,, 
,!C:"l 42 
101 I) 
< ... V "IJ 

AJ •1.'.\h ,.cb 31. 
lfll! 

;.on•~ 

1..: ..... ~r, 
IY'.14 ,..,5 
! Oi: q 

l.J""l 0 l 

111f bl•lit\x ' """J'o• f•;J.::1 J;; i' ·rt'IJl ··'"'• lhc t.•• "'•• •._..: · ·~· .. it' t o.1f :_.,., ti.ihm1;'"f .u :lM:::,.""'31 l•· '~ .lftd~:.:;o.;l\ ~I _ !••l:? 
art iin 11not: ... •"•<t J ba:c 

~ ttlo)non(' )':U 
01, .. 1 ... r.\ •• \ "IC 

Mf"f. th mfh. ,~ 

T n111J 

1 Hh) Othirr cu~n• Rn<11ntUl lbhilltl" 

r.:~~:, ,_.u. : ._., r,tir. cio :11c 
C•~i1..11 I C'll•1;1 .. r 
0 1:\("f' ,...._ hit• 

Tnd~ p;a~ J hlt s 
- 1 .. .,..1 \"11 .. ...,1:npJut' i\r m~r .. e<'~"" ~nd .. 11\lll e-··~~ 
•l .. 'l t i 001.,_..,-,. l ;r;~\~ O( i T• ,J;f,>f'l ntJ. .. T thin ,,,.;, f,1 ('1'< "'rf;..e< ~d :.r1..i.ll 1'l\ 1 r1 · .... , 

AS .It ~llH'ltl l . 

21ll t 
~1 ... 40 

I ' ?'"' '15 

1 J~0.411: 

As SC ~h•~h J I, 
2n.n 

1 .~nr. • 1 
IMJI'; 

~H 12 
LlAll .. 1 

As :at ;\l11rch 31. 

Wll 

AJ.•l ~h.-<:b.l l . 

2012 
41.J. f\7 

I ~y.) q ; 

J.lt U .00 

As Ul\h '1:h.JI . 
2021 

1 (Iii~ ('f 

ll L<~ 

I .JO<:: 71 

.\J :11.\l.- n.h J I . 

1022 

::.1:t 
l .l<1J4 

T otili lnde Dl\fhlM j c.w ~~ 2.154,.'\7 

T• .idt r ... ,l"f W~fllt°""'dbeori"S end.Jrt ~ ~ ·ll!"onk"fT'KofJOI!. . ~""'"' ~t of'"n•ol\.C'. 

P.1,.-tinrlars AJ SI '.\ltr-r:h JI, AJ ti i\lft .. h 3 1. 

?n! ' lOH 

Tc;.dqr ... "-"• ' ·"''" 78 1~-- co_; 
Tr.:-dcrt-• hlrt1" n ' .t . .!r m,~µ f'.~n.;t 13) "'"" 'S l •'; .. 14 
·r ul:;al ln1J<' n • u1hlM J c-''1 Cl l .1<.J.C7 

Tk~I. •liR!("·r- •ttW tlK\., ;. " "'u .. ll lnd1-" t: .. n. [ r. 'f"' :•...s r)- \;.'fh•• iolAc" ) """' f).hMf C' .t..-i! u :itM•r.:-hJI. 
:o?:t tnd ~t I~ JI. 111,!~ ~ Po lAkr. 

P••·fo·uS..rs As ;at ;\h11d1 31, As ti .'.\h r~h :JI . 
?All ?All 

l .:i • r 1i(ll. ;1...,l 1111•'\l•lt ...... ;h;nil'. UllfU:d 2.(1(' ;.:!J 
lh\ lni d11e fl•\ • .n r-c11o.1:r.i11~ unp.iJ 
ic•lnt , ,.,Ll h) 01cC....-~ "'r m 11..rrru:"r< ;,..,,, J G..,flh.: M~MED t\~t , : ..... ~. ;th 
1h.. a ... ~.011 uf1hc r":"1o1'0( n·~.,,l to the' ,,, IJf'rliat .. : •ff>J the ~l'f" '; ..... J J.iy 

(tO l.w. 'tt JltcMtd t- ~ "-lc~lh.: i',;. ~~~rJ...:.~ iorr..~l"in1r :ri ...... ,,.h<'hlu . .. bf.:"fl 
r->iJb"' .... J\JK Jf'r ...... . 1..t..,~lh.. r ... .. II hue •.;.j1t.. -~ .,.;;ll£ i" ' 
~ :r ... .._,i unc\.:" 1h< ~~'-'FU ;' .:1 

cc• l rt~ . .... J ~"'J rons.in;i.;_ '"'J ·~ 
(f• f.,nt-'°" 11... ,,., . .._; .. i,lf du.: JnJ p ,..Mt C""~ in tho; ,,. "r11! ~~.n. ln'lil ·•M"h 
dolt ·Aixft IM \n1 ~ du~ •· c .zr< •'''lily r -"J tu the >T»ll t'l'TT · or tht 
!"Uf'I~ vf J i411l. ·~:: o·h,I. ii.le t" , ~f;,, lf'IC' U.roib ,;,<ftl3. 

Xoc n1 d ue Ltu lh:Jn I ,-u .r Tot:.I 

l."'~ ".30 I r.-• :.17 3 <J1.n 

P1u·lit'ulan 
i"ul \"e l d ut l ,C'\\ lh an l \U r Tolal 

3.13 3 1.l 
21cu4 



Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unle~s otherwise stated) 

Note 12: Provisions 

Particulars As at M arch 31, As at March 31, 
2023 2022 

Provision for wellne~s services 1.5 14.04 797.20 
Total 1,514.04 797.20 

(i) Infom1atio11 about individual provisions and significant estimates 

Provision for Wellness se1-vices 
Provision is made for c ti.mated liabilities of servicing cu<:tomers for diagnostic benefits at the end of the reporting period. 
Management estimates the provision bac;ed on any recenl trends that suggest expected claims. 

(ii) Movements in provisions 
M hi f ovements m eac c ass o prov1s10n d . I ft . I urmg t ie mancia year are set out b l eow: 
Particulars Cancellation Provision for Total 

provision wellness sel"Vices 

As at April 01, 2021 106.67 87.85 194.52 
Charged/( credited) to profit or lo~s 

-additional provisions recognised - 896.72 896.72 
-unused amounts reversed 26.67 71.81 98.48 

Amounts used during the year 80.00 115.56 195.56 
As at March 31, 2022 - 797.20 797.20 
As at April 01, 2022 - 797.20 797.20 
Charged/( credited) to profi t or lo<:s 

-additional provisions recognised - 4,268.04 4,268.04 
-unused amounts reversed - 325.44 325.44 

Amounts used during the year - 3,225.76 3,225.76 
As at March 31, 2023 - 1,514.04 1,514.04 



R2jaj Fin,cn · Hea lth t.i m;ltod 

Nok~ Co Finaoc-iaI >hHcmt-nbi for the ~~r cnJ.-d Ma.-ch JI. 2023 
(All &nil •uTilS in JNR \ll ~h_,. unk olh('O\ i.c f1•1cdl 

i) o , finl'd bt n l!nt pbuu: 

B Gr;1toity-

Current I 
31 :> R< I 
31'.85 I 

A5 a1 Ma ... ch 31. 2023 

Non-current I Tnt;t l 
I ~p Q' 
I 3 11. ~' 

The i;.r.1l 11i1y pbn is a·u.~d by the PJ_u nc;nt of(ir.,1t1ily Acl, 1972. Untl,.r 1he (ir.-,111ily .i\c11 an emr1l .. ,>._-: .... Jio h:s {.l .rqpl\-t.!'ri ftvc jT rs e>f St'!\ ice 
is ~fl1 itlci.,I to ' f'\."' jFt\.. }'-..._.,.,..fit~ The lt"d oft..-n. fih r r-..vi.Jcd J, J".-'n•h on the m:mht·r·s le.ne~h of .it"r\o ~o.. I~~ ·ri.,,j gr..iJ..: Jncl ~1l.J1)0 ll r.:.tir1..•mcN 

~gc. 

n i:finert hc-r~·fit nhJig,1! ;1lf\ i al tlw ~lr.nfng Of!hc ) CJr 

Cu11 ..:.ol sen. i ... .: : ... , 
fut, h .'l (m 1lt fittQI bi,;n...,fit (\hlig,.,1 ;.,,,.,. 

Rcmen"\Jf\~nt dut" to: 
A' 1 ~1arial lou '(&1l11) ilri. .. ing Oil a1o.~•·l11l1 of [m.)1'11.. i.4 a-- .. mp,:i1111 
:Uhwrlnl 1· ·~· '(£)..il1) ar; .. ;"g <'" a(;:(.•·•uni of dem• •grJphic ::"4.l"'Pj ;, 111 
r\"'ludti.dl 1 ..... '(~in} .,, ~ .. ifl£ OI' 01..voolt ofhfc ric:1 1(:t ~h;lr:c.-rS 

Bend~t ... p.iiJ 

Li;,hifilicr " '-'""•ncJ/ i <;dll.:;ol)• 

0 l'filll"d henf'ril nb lii!a l inn ns at t he end of l he 'cur 

fair \;ilu..: of rlitll ~t l 5 \lt the bc$tnnirtg of the ) ... .:ir 
F.mrk·~ ... ..,. n111tr;hvt i\ 11l 

J111~ .. 1 {'n plan .lHC't~ 

l~.: .. tCC1H1r1.~flt due to: 
..-\dual rd um on rl.in ~s ltil irtt ert .. t on flli\n a~\Cts 
Rcndils Ntd 
cl1<Jft1>~ in : ~1 c~iling 

.i\U\.' t 11.l"< viii:J 
F11lr va lue ofnl:m ll.f'ct as :Uthe end of the nar 

ll<'cnnrHi.afi»n nrnct liaMlitv/ I U·CI 

N~t defu1e1i bcnd it li'1hilif~·.'(• .. ,,.~, ll at thl!' hl.~~[t'lni:ng of tlK: ; ... .tr 

f 'll'Cll- -ch.i~g ... d to .. , ·".:-m..:nl of rr,.f.t a•id k.-c! 
,\ru11unt h:c C'l3 .. : .... J PVf .. i.Jc Pt\.•flf -.wd to~: 
t:-mrt .. .!i' er ""~11 i"'111i.ii1 

RC'ntc.a.,u1c1Ttt •1t due 10: 

i\1."l\tu1l.1I ~hs.'(µin) <ui ... il'\gon U..\. " wit ofrtri.:;t;1. n... c d11 ·~"'-' 

Liahilil ir-.'""'T ;:. J_t•lli,li (, ttlOO) 

Ne[ d f' lin r>d tltnr rit li;.1hilil y/(abfl) H ar the end of the vea r 

E:cru•O\C~ cbat'2cd to the Stauc.r.ucnt of Pm flt and Lo~ 

Pa 11icu litrs 

Cun~l'll 11.:n i..,.: 0::(• .. I 

Write o tr ror A~a "'-•1u;.,.._J 
fl'\r.;t"~ 'i on 1'\CI defu1cd l'l('nC'fit li!'hility/ (~ e t) 

As at !\·l u rch 3 1, 2023 As at Marc.h JI , 2012 

451.53 267 61 
157.39 99.56 
32 '\) 1g_11 

tl<t) ;\;J (32.37] 
(1~"' i9) 0.00 

5~ 26 10 1.5~ 

(2.'4) (2.~l)J 

13'.i ii~ 0.00 
570 ~8 .tSl ~3 

As !11 March 3 1. 202J .As at March JI. 2012 

511.34 
192.'°5 
2i.9B 

(4 >:O) 

(2 x.;;) 
o .;;o 

14.70 
7.\Q.76 

.w~ r.!il 

49.-1:! 
21.91 

(} 1• ) 
(2.')l lJ 

051 
non 

5 11.34 

As a t J\·)11.-ch 3 l . 2023 Al at Mare.h JI, l Ol.! 

(>O • I) (17• 07) 

161 Q5 9S.7 ,; 

p1111 iS) 7 1 .9~ 

(192.05) (49.42) 

fl(\(j ono 
123. 18 OM 

(l~R.1R) (~O RI ) 

As at Mnn:h JI, 2023 :\ s :s1.t M11n:h 3 1, 2021 

157.39 
123. 18 
4'~ 

28" .13 

As a t M2rth J I, 2022 

Curn:nr I :'\on·currtn 1 I Total 
:!~4.70 I I :!M.70 
284.70 I I 2&.1 .70 



R<1jaj F'i1nen' Hu lfh Li111il td 
Nrift'S ro Fimmd:d st-atC'mtnf<11: fur lhe ~tn emJnl Mau:h 31. 202.l 
tAll 1 ..... .. . 111 ... in INR b lchc. unlci« 11hc,...hc ..!1 1c<l) 

Partit'uh•rs 

A"1u.11i..: k."' 'Wi11) ar;..:.1g on .... "''\.tu\ of fiu.,114,. i I 1110(M;.1n 
• .:.....iv,.1kti ki'-• '($.-);11\ ,.,; .. ;og 011 "\-4.. ••u•1l of J ,.m •• ~r •j'htc 1••.J<l'{'+i. 111 

A1.-lu.,1iu l ~~. "(a.ti11) :;ri .. i...-1g on "'-~"uul o f ('pt"1i.r.-1("c;. d1"'''~" .. 
A"lu., I rchun "'" r:.l n ..:_ ..e~t Im i111c ~ on pl.n .. 
Adit1 .. r11w:n1to 1c \ .,,f...c ·IT'"" l o f ..... ..ct cei:i11u. 
E~1)Nt'4,.') Ch3 1"1:Cd to the SletcnJt"lll oroc1 

Am r.uni rt'<'Oi!: nhf-d in Rtlaoce 1htt l Otef~r nett e 81 
Partirnlars 

Pre ~nt \.lluc o rroo.JcJ. Jcl"111<J l'c1tcl'it l)bli~t1i.1n 

fair .,,11-._ of r•L.n ,;. • ... 

Particulars 

Oi ........ 1111 nit~(i >t) 
s~ tiry:'lor. tl.tM •nratc(r.1) 
M111 l •lilyli1hle-
W it hJr . ..,J.(OllC 

C~tc1i1: 11 rv of ohm a;;"\cU 
Par fil:uh•n 

Jn,u•er M cft...ii..;cJ li1nd.;: 
Total uh•n :au,·1 ~ 

Scn\lfh ity ana l~ ds for ~lgnlnC'•nr 1u11mpli11n~ 11 :u shm\n b,·low 

,\ s at M ai ch 3 1. 202.3 As ar Much J l . 20!2 

(~ ll'I J 

(15~ 19) 

5~ 16 
J ~,; 

nno 
(ZOO 75) 

.As JU Msrch 3 1. 202J 

31(1 ... ~ 
?lu 76 

As af !\'Itrch 31, 2023 

1.-:~·~ 

tn M\~ 

IAI Ml'" ll-14) Ult 
15 r ... • 

AJ a t l\hu .. h 3 1. 202.3 

7J9 76 
7)0.76 

(32.37) 
OM 

IOI 52 
3.2S 

1n<n 
71.9? 

As :u Mar~h 3 1, 2022 

451 '\'\ 

511.34 
59.8 1 

7.:!5 ... 
1n no~ .. 

J ALM~ ' •i! :?· 14) Uh 
:_lt)r",. 

As 1t Much 31.1012 I 
511.34 I 
511.34 I 

The (olk .. \ir1g IJJhlr ' uiTf•Y\otfi ... ·J the i11 1fl} .... 1 in a ... u•lt11e l c fl11J on the rtrl\ •nW dt!r.rocd hc(l('r.t ohlit ,;,," al 1hc end or 
Che rl!rortiog r--ri.>d u.r; ... ing on -.i. .. urit ofan iN ~or J,., ...: in 1hc J;"'-'"J•tt rat< .ind .....,1..Jy .. • • .1;..n Qtc_ 

Dd incJ btnic-l'i1 ~hfi8"1~ll't dut lo K"~i1i .. ity in d; .. unt rJIC 
o~~nc1J hc'.-1~1i10Mi1• 11 itin Jue- to Jnt~i1i" i1v in , ' 1rv ~ !.i1 ~.,.. rute 

rrojnted Pl:m C:1.sh Flow 

W;ihif\ the DC'(I 12 fftn11lh< fr1t>'<l i!ftto"-4J rtf"<1t1ih~ f'Cn ,.J) 
Ael"cen 2 :md S ~ 1rs 
B(.I ... ,.. 5 Jnd 10 )\.4fS 

G..""'°"Al.1 10 "'-'"'S 

Nore 14: Other cur~nl Uol1ili"li.,,: 

As at Miu ch 31. 2023 

551A7 I 
59 1.23 

As nt i\Jnrch 31. 2023 
Stninr Sf ll fT JtJnl ,o,.- Sta ff 

591.45 
55 1.S.? 

,fo(ol\ 10 ().I 
I~~ 13 78 J6 

177.59 ·~ 17 
2xli 13 21i.95 
6H 1.05 3•0.62 

As 111 March31, 2012 

41•1n l ..i~ ;,;g 

4Sfi <i~ --' l9...l5 

.A !! :u March J I. 2022 
S\'Oi•1r Staff Janin,. SlwlT 

• . , 6 1.23 
32.70 10 OQ 

57-58 19.10 
75 1.44 Jlllll.47 

8J6.0H 834.69 

P-a rtlrulwrs ,\ 1 ~t March 3 1. 2013 As :n Marth J l .1012 

~l.t111i 1•') .inJ,,lilerlilh iiif ifoc 
R('(v111l liahillty 

Ad \ .. ,,, ... r.\.m l.'"u .. f••n~~ 

Tot:.il Other lialJilil ie~ 

5fiU ti 

2 r.s 
1<< 77 
~6• •O 

..µo l .-i; 

fl R1 

41.41 
497.60 



Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 
(All amounts in fNR lakh~, unk,s otherwise stated) 

Note 15: Revenue From Operations 

Th d f e company e1v1es the following types o revenue : 
Particular 

Revenue from contracts with cu<.t,ll11ers 
-Sale of services 
Total revenue from oprations 

Year ended M arch Year ended March 
31, 2023 31, 2022 

17,996.74 R,667.52 
17,996.74 8,667.52 

The Company collects GST on behalf of the Government. Hence, GST is not included in Revenue from operntion~. 

R T ' econc1 iation o f . d . h revenue reco2111se Wit contract once 
Particular Year ended March Year ended March 

31 , 2023 31 , 2022 
Gross collections as per contracted price 2R,553.40 13,5 17.76 
Deductions for: 
Contract liabilities- Insurance p1emiu111 8,525.62 4,01 7.83 
Net cancellation 2,031.04 832.41 
Revenue from continuing ooerations 17,996.74 8,667.52 

Note 16: Other income 

Particular Year ended March Year ended March 
31 , 2023 31,2022 

Net fa ir value gain of fi nancial a~'els mea ured at fai r value 14.97 9.94 
tlu-ough profit and Jo .. s 
Interest income from fixed depo, its 17.59 4.86 
Refund retained 398.08 122.38 
Unwinding of di~ .... ount on s.: .... urity deo'"ils 67.85 16.1 6 
Total other income 498.49 153.34 

Note 17: Employee benefits expense 

Particular Notes Year ended M a rch Year ended March 
31, 2023 31, 2022 

Salaries, wages and bonus 8,846.17 5,490.52 

Contribution to prnvident a11d other funds 302.10 198.22 
Share ba;;ed payment to employees 27 746.05 378.76 
Grat uity 13 285.13 95.76 

Staff welfare exoen<cs 600.05 255. 19 
Total employee benefit expense 10,779.50 6,418.45 

This space has been intentionally left blank 



Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unle~s otherwi~e slated) 

Note 18: Depreciation and amortisation expense 

Particular 

Depreciation of prope1ty, plant and equipment 

Dep1eciation on right-of-use a''et 
Amortisation of intangible a'<.ets 
Tota l depreciation and a mortisation expense 

Note 19: Other expenses 

Particular 

Sales commi,.,ion 

Customer Service claims/provider claims 
Sub-contracting expenses 

Fees fo r Technical services* 
Brand and marketing 
Communication charges 
Miscellaneous expen<c::s 
Travel and conveyance 

Bu~i nc-s support expen<cs (refer no te 23) 
Office expeni;cs 

Legal and profc--ional fees 
Bad debts expenses 
Recrnitment expenses 
Repairs and maintenance 

Payments to auditors (refer note 19(a) below) 
Rates and taxes 
Expected credit lo"s fo r trade receivables 
Total other expenses 

Notes 

3 
4 

5 

Year ended March Year ended March 
31, 2023 31,2022 

237.35 20 1.42 
460.44 166.82 
835.59 888.03 

1,533.38 1,256.27 

Year ended March Year ended Ma rch 
31,2023 3 1, 2022 

11,671.70 5,659.06 
4,334.54 1,588.00 
3,038 80 2,574.66 
1,541.19 964.03 
1,248.73 961 .97 
1,189.82 683.88 

471.62 204.57 
424.46 87.60 
420.8 1 668.09 
232.86 75.06 
165. 15 93.87 
148.64 -
26.6 1 13.81 
10.81 7.98 
5.00 5.00 
0 30 6 .29 

(I 54.00) 430.77 
24,777.04 14,024.64 

"'Development c.0sts that are not elig ible for capital i~al ion have been e;>,.pensed in the pe1iod incu1Ted and recogni<cd in other 
expenses 

Note 19(a): Details of payments to auditors 

Particular Year ended March Year ended March 
31, 2023 3 1, 2022 

Payment to auditor 
As auditor: 
Stalulory audit fee 4.00 4.00 

Tax audit fee 1.00 1.00 

Out of pocket expenses - -
Total payments to auditor 5.00 5.00 

Note 20: Finance costs 

P articular Year ended March Year ended March 
31,2023 31,2022 

lnlere~t expense on Je;.1,.ed lial'>ilities 191.87 66.45 

Finance costs exoensed 191.87 66.45 

~~ 
:-. ' :--.... ,'4 
~- c:~ 

--



Rajaj Finc:en· Ht-alth t .I mired 

Nuh:s to Flnandal st:.tlt m eflft for the ~·ear ended 1\'larch 3 1, 20lJ 
(All an ... unh in INR b kh'" 11n'Ht olhci~i>.: s.t.,h;d) 

Note 21: fllir \'otlue mee ... urcml'rtf( 

Finant ia l in,frumc1115 bv cat r 11ory 

Pa ttic ut., r 

finenci:1I a"et~ 

, .. ,"" .. '""'"'" 
- Mutunl fond-. 

Tr•Je rc-i..d\•hlt'" 
CA(h 111 nd C'"l<i C\Wh ~l l1.nh. 
'"1. u1i1y&,:p .... ;1 .. 

Other fi ndn1. irl_I a <'~ 

Tl1tal finanr inl aHr ts 

fi nt ndal liot)ftltie~ 
Ti<u.kr _.,.,1 .. s: 
l (' .: fo.1l1;Ji1iC:"i 
Orher fi11dJ'i1. lJ I li..iOiiitics 
Tnhtl Oounci11 l liabllifif( 

As •t Morch J I. 2023 
F11 irVnlue 

FVPL FVOCI 

275.74 
1 r1t ... 11 )l't 

2 l 0 0,25 

214.14 
37.30 

275.74 4.62 1.52 

3.54.! 53 
1,1s:!< 45 
2.~.,ji 42 

1.~'H JO 

C:1rr~ ing 
Voluc 

275.74 
2 n,.n st:t 
2 \119.25 

214.14 
37.:'0 

4.897.26 

3.5-1.! '\1 
l .i;;.~ 45 

2.'"" 42 
7.~'H.40 

FVPL 

l M 18 

As 01 Morch J I , 2022 
Fair Value 

FVOCI 
Amorli'>t'd 

Cn(t 

H'" 43 
1,soo n6 

30,; RR 

2;c; on 
2,il20.97 

2, IO< 74 
1,371 03 
1.29' 71 
4.775-18 

Ca rf)ing 
Value 

2h0 78 
:SH'l.43 

1.5"" n6 
JMH~ 

2~00 

3,0Hl.75 

2 ,1n< 74 
1 .)7~ OJ 
UO<? I 

4.775.38 

T he 1u1:tn;;gernc,1l :!• < «i th-;i t c.~ .. h .imJ c.1 .. h c4ui\Jlc111 .. , tJ: .,tfe f(1.ci .tlil\"S. 1r,1Jir: p ) ,fl! .. \ 1nd nfh('r i.:.u11..-• •l lid•ii;1;e,. apr•,. , :ow1t! rhc:ir (J,,~;ni;. :.t1111•or11)' Lt.r~c;;ly J ue to the d .. 11t-tttn' 

tlldlurifici" of lhC' -: jn .. frtinlcl'\l-IO:. 

The fdir \dlt1c of1hc fi11.1n1.~;ttl l 1 lnJ 1 i 11hili·i~ i~ i11\. lutkd ;it the ,')111o11111t at which the iMf1onxnt """ uld be C''-''"'\~."d in:? Lw1.;nt t1 .,, 11.1 ; .. u licn..'"l.'." williui; P<Jf1ic", 11ll1r-r 1'1-Jn in a 
f1,u\.cJ or li1111i<Jc1f;, ,i\ c1 lr . 
The fair \t.1 l1Je" oflhe q uolC'd rnv1u.i l funJ) :ir: l- don pr;~e qu •• 1 .. 1j,,"' Jt 1he rC'p .. rting J.11e. The foir \ .lo(' of ohliv ti111h unJer It ~ is t •lifl\w•C'd by J: .. H•onting future C'.t"h f1n'"' u .. ing 
rate~ currenlly a~01 il~hlc for dcht on .. imi!.1r l(m1\ c-rcJir ri sk 3111i rCfT"' 'ning 11ulu1 ii i~ . 

j\1'1111~ 22: Et1 r nlngs per st-Arc 

9., .. ic EPS 1111·1;,unl .. 11\: 1,..J l1..L•l.1t~J by diviJi1 1g the r r,1!;1 fur lhe ) ... J r 0111r;hu1~~hlc lo - ·-to.li ly hl' ld1.1" of1hc p.m:111 by lhc \hit,hlc-d J "'"'-'SC "•Jt1•hl r of E...tu;ly .. tur("i ,.,t1 .. tM1J;ft2,Jut irig the )""dr. 

DilurcJ EPS 11 ntt1u.n1-. ore c-;.1lo.:uL.it.-d by di \<iJ:n~ the i,,,,fh a111 ih11 .. hle to ~,1;ty tmlJ.c:-ts of the r ••\'.nf {ancr .iJju .. 1in~ for i o11,. tdt on the {it-cooeJ ~11ity. if ;my) by lhe \hit l•kd .. . c •ute 

nu1nhcr of f ,tuity d13rc-5 Ot•hlel••Lling during the yn r plus the \Hirh1 .. J J: ... ~~!l" nun\1,.,_...,. of F~1uity shatc-s th:it .... .,uld be iH1K.d on (1)1\." i.-n or all the diluf i\,~ f'Jtcnri~I F~tto;C)' ~h ... t1..) in10 

F.c1uity 5h4r~s. 

T he fiillt•\\·ing rc.r.C\.h the inp)1tlt a11d st."r"~ JJt~ u ...... J in the b.l .. i4.: and <liluh.J 1:.PS .... ntp•i•<iti•""'· 

Pa1Ck11li1rs AsatM:i1t.: h As at March 
3 1,2023 31, 2022 

A) t'rvfit .Jll1 il1ul<thlc to lhc l.'quily h··lJcrs ~r1he: c:o1nr1.1n)': (!8,7~~ ·~> ( 12,944.95) 

l:J) Wi;ighfcJ l \ ~t:!o! 1"111mher or equity ,.h.1td for to ... ic ~· ni•'~~ 25 00 25 no 
oer .. h.,re 

Enrnlne per Shore IR••lcl I Rs) 1751.46) (517.ROI 

C) wc:;g.htt.d l\~~!I-= OUfl\~rofc"i uity .:!h·"'-' fvr dil:11rJ ;..1rri1·s:" 1 r\'i;\ Q9 1.549 ~9 
oc=r -.h.:11c: 

F.a1 nln(• ner Share ( Ollult'd) lRs)* (751.46) 1517.ROI 

~-



R~J111j Jo1m.-r\' llt>allh l.lmfkd 

N11f~ ro Fin.ind .. ! •t:attrm.-nb fnr 1hc )nir cn1h•d M:.rcl1 JI. l(•lJ 

( All tim."'""' 111 TNR W.ht tn•: •• "">ic"th .:•,n 

Na mt or rtt.t .. (I pa rty and 1u111rt or ~btifln•hlp 

Hnldiast rr•mp.uy: 
B .. ; .. j Fi~· Lid 1Hna.~;•)t ••••1'- •·:) 

Suh.ldl:.rift •nd frJlnn fllh•kfiAn ·: 
D;sjJJ Allhl'\Z r., .._,.11~ ~·•• .i 11r. c C~. Ltd. 
(f ;:lltv4· 111t.c:,1:,,ry) 

n~~:tJ Alli,.'IX ur~ h•· .\All"°' ' CC'. LuJ. 
(f~llt"'' $Uh,<. li.1ry) 

Uo\j..ij f 11\oof\."t 1..td 
CFeUcwrJ....~l: ·ry) 

B~; .. J f ;Q!k;t\' 0:,,.,.1 u m;..cJ 
(Ft::llu·1r.• rnh, .,t;•t'!"I 

U<'.J ·j Fu• "" ; ~1 ~ • .,-;,;C"' Ltd 
fFcll"Wtt1"·:.1: , ry) 

Other tn l lh· 

61",,j HNrt~ :tnd 1w, " 'iCnl.Ltd 
t 1tth;:rcit'l i1v) 

1-tiud Mi.o°'fi' .' .:..""'Y Ltd 
I01~r <-n.;1y) 

8. ir' Alli, l'll. i.:.. O'i"Jl f.:..l utM ort• Ud 
lOthcr ('f'll if\I) 

llo\;Jj '""' ' Pfll.I• ttJ c;,, 'Ur \.r •• oilv Fund 
( Other [;111;1 ... ) 

R1laj Autu SM;..., ,:..,jj(':,,.~ \.• 1H1•:ly Fund 

\Olbcr En1i1y) 

K~~· l\1 0RJ1~td:. I P~ri.r.nnr"I 

0;.~ \11vly tWholcTim: ni.- ;,") 

c. ~ .. , ;~ .. ,.;.~ r •• .m !'\.'\If' in 1 ... 1 ... -c o( '"<tuiry 
Bo.:, ~Surf'"'' Cli..a11> ·r-
T11n:)hk , - J~Jh.h J 
n~ :,,.,.,,.,. .... 11t rvr•: ... ~f'-.!''lf'IO.""' 

, ... ,. ,11 .. in;., tl i\: \'8 

ffi.,., ,,.._ ... fWt'")um r•~ fl,)f' R b CT j)'.: if ')• ) . ,ll\.!li 

C(<...in~ l:.' •11t..c of .td, .. ,..~ f.x 11 ... ""~ Ji.') . ..... 
111~.it .. • 11,. fl•('• ~vrn (' ,;,1 (~'I' ,."1Tf'I" • .., Jw oug the ~ ~~r 
AJ\ ,,_r.1.c ("'cfh~IJYl• f"Jld 
h•~ ... n. .. r' nimn ru.Mt f\)IJ ,,_ ·r r- W~· :. ,,j1& 

0 ;~ .,._ ' '""": o(f\"'\\ I ad·• °"''-

R ' '"'• 
S:i.uri') Ji., --..'.tr1 ' -J 

~-Mf .... ("O<'l d- •p.1dt.irta, Lhc ; ur 
a..: .• ~"'1 k•"•.il"'· ~ 

T.M!JMc •• f'\"...I -t 

M.11. l,:"f r :i.."J r ••• · ' ·l1:Juri11e the~ ;"1 
Ma.r\'(fi<t11 r. ... ;o. hlf Uu.i11 ~ the F J.r 
C> it-., .... r;~ r . hJc ~ • ..... J.t ) O:-lt ~ 
Ti..nJhk t -• c; " 1 

Rw ;*"'' Sit.":" '" Cl:-.. , ' 
/\l:a1l1,;:n., "::J !'•> .. ' · I~ Jurin' th: ) -..It 

rt .. 111£&~ 
M~·· ·1:ngr.zu- "'kJw; •. e. lt-..;: i" ;,.J 
T....-~a·lt.\"" •c iu .. >- t 

s:-"' ~cmr:. · ... b. rib 
Sh. 1 .. ?: 1,. . m..111 

T 1a11•.i, tiun Va lur 
for t ilt period t'ndt"d 
~hn:-b 31, lAH 

t:'"' ..-.. it<•) 

4in ~ I 

I ni•-t 45 

51.-;.") 

i . .. - ' 
r:"I" 'Jl~ 

r: .'.;~ 

3,-C.J!;: :9 

(1: '') 
11. :: 1 

( Jl'i ~}) 

~::: ' 4 

:! . .M 
{.::~~ .-r.) 

' Q,~ '!.7 

( \I~ : J) 

2l 49 
o.~9 

u1;:) 

~.01 

1ic. «1:) 

771 4 

II !.~I 

1.r ... ~v~ 
.;:~ ~ 

(.\u1•1.11~1finl: Trair-a.-li11n Vt1 lue Out••-.n1l1rtit 
a n111tml• c:an~d for lhc pirriud c 11Jt•d • m•1 1.m 1• u rdcd 
In lhc Dll.m1:r ~h•cb31. l OlZ la th< D• '-nrt' 
SIM't'I Sht'd 

(J f••it: lf• M ) 

(l !.Ui 

(Q.C i\i) 

'.' .40 

! '"i.t'11 
SJ "~ 

~ ~~ 

6""1-""l 

~.01 

J • <:, 

. h • .r. 7$) 

0.37 

(l ( i'l(l(11•1 • 

(.,'; l1"19 

JI Ol 
7Ql i O 

.l~ ~J 

I ~ ir. (( 

fr~- Sii) 

-I I .~! 

l /·~' .i:! 

:io '"6 

0 •• 

llH•··~ ..... 
2$.11 

(lt.j ' " ) 

5.•P ( I) 

24.lO 

t i .84 

IOM 

f'J•"WlM1 

1.26 

:?J.11 

..... 
0,, 

( I n1,; r..s1 
p,;01, 

Th~ ,,1,0\-. d:f 1 ..... , 1(("( l-h "-1 r11 .. .X f\n" r .. ' •.t' p.11i • ., n_,it;r.,~ u <tLl\.11 r-tl:-r JO bc in , .... r..,..,)ry with 1hc h•Ji,.'1 .\ •"' •"•1:oii S• • .bnj ilnd \ $ \ N. 
All .it ..... c lt 111 ... l;,"" .;re in 1tM: <irJ:,1r.J)'«'l~\)(b- .. tr- : nd on•""1' fcn;.>J:1r : .,~ IU1l;11b ux inlf'\CI, 
N4i11Coflhc: r.• Nf~-tl} anJ fl'• u\• e "'(lhcr .. • ~ , . 1yr~1 .;,_hif1 ¥ihl.o<.,;-w11 ... ! t.1 .. l,;,i~ .. ~-1 di :. :'i i"~. 1i.cur .~ 1· 1-.:r oroo thu.! l..i. ... • «1~1~1~-~,..,. o lht r .. • •:"\Jr_,; .. 
ln....th...--:- ; -t. if;..._ l, ... .;,. b.t.,l " nvo:kooly•b."t' th .. c t .. , ... n 1lo1 .. .,1;. \\ithll - ;1,1.0"10l-• 

Objrclh.t~ pl'llt ic-• :and P""<""'' or cnplhll nJ PiUjttffidll 

Th< CM IJ'tri)' h&c n<' ..: .. r"wl \Jflx r&h.Hlo r ,\_1 .. ily. Thc O · ·tw·Y if 1)(1( r I :v tny r~:. •hi• ")'~ 4 r:1 .. l " ' tUi •.._ ....... "' ... 

The ...._·\ m~u ... .:re°""' "-'"'}' Ito' 'i in i""'"'.: ... · ,._,;"~ di ...... ..; .• ?\.•t t..-..ml lil.1~tkJ n•.-,ni Ft1no.I. , .,.. tliun ,, , ... r.'t J.., . • • &.~>*i ~ - ••"''~"'-'-.'--;;,;,,"''"tin;. :.ith dK ~.;.J..l;on ~.t <Ali b1 d-c JT• ""'P""''•I. 
Sa:"<-t:- of • .af"i"""I is: Of !'fimc ~_,,,-.._ .. \G ("1\'tw= i• 't d.,ilif!.·or (l1f'ld1 tnrJ IKl'..10.Jl,y r..,... "I" • .. :.-. lrn ,,,....._ ~'...;,;. 1:~., :_, lO jV•· .. :dc: !; fe1y~ lilc 1wpl~ rw.Ji.. 

A• J I ~l.i•d1 J I, A~ :ii March 3 1. 
1u1J 2nu 

Ei.1u;ly 

Adi•· 'n-11"': 
I~'".::"~~, ( < J 'l1 ! ill 

l tit. ~ I :?.::"" ~ 

2?( 74 260.78 



Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 

Notes to Financia l statem ents for the year ended March 31, 2023 
(All amnunts in lNR lakhs, unle--s oth..:rwbe stated) 

Note 25: Fair Value Hie ra rchy 

I. Q uantitative Disclosures 
a. Quantitative disclo~ure of fair value measurement hierarchy for a~~ets 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Fair value measurement usin!! Fair value mea~urement usin2 

Particulars Quoted prices Significant Quoted prices Significant 
in active observable inputs in active observable 
markets (Level (Level 2) markets (Level inputs 
1) 1) (Level 2) 

lnvc~tments held for trading under FVTPL 275.74 - 260.78 
Total 275.74 - 260.78 

b. Fair value of fin ancial instruments not measured at fa ir value 

Fair value of financial instruments not measured at fair value as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 
Management considers the caffying amount,, of fi nancial 3,,cts and finan ... ial liabil ities in the financ ial statement•, ex.:-t"pt as per note 
above. 

2. Financia l risk management obj ectives and policies 

-
-

The principal financial liahilities of company compri~e trade and other payable>, leJ 'e liabilities. The main purpn e of these financial 
liAbilities is to fina1\ce the operntions of company and to provide guarantee~ to suppo1t its op~rations . The principal fin~ncia l a~'ets of 
company include trade and other r.:ceivables, and ca'h and ca<h equivalent ·that de1 ive dir.x.tly from its operati11ns. The company is 
e.\po,cd to market risk, credit risk. The Grnup 's senior nurnagemcnt ovc~ccs the management ofthe'e risks. 

Market risk 
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of fu ture ca<h flows ofa financ ia l instrument will fluctuate bec.iu,e of changes in market prices. 
Market risk cornpriscs three types of risk: interest rate ri•k, currency risk and other price ri•k 

Interest rate risk 
Intere t rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future ca 'h flows of a findncial in. trument will fl uctuate be~au'e of changes in market 
interest rates. The expo,ure to the risk of changes in ma1ket intcr~t rates relates primarily to the long tem1 le;i-e payments. 

The Company invc<.ts the surplus fund generated from operations in sho1t tenn depo,its with bank• and mutual fund<. Bank depo.;its are 
made for a short tem1 period of upto 12 inr.nths carry interest rate as per prevailing market inkr..:st rate. Considering th~>C bank dep,1,its 

are short tenn in nattue, there is no signifkant interc t rate risk. 

Foreign currency risk 
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future ca<h flows of an e>..pC'-ltre will fluctuate becau~e of changes in foreign 
e:1.cha nge raks. The risk of cha11gcs in foreign exchange rates for compdny relatc:s primarily to the operating activities (when expen,e is 
den11mi11ated in a foreign currency). U"s bonked due to fluctuation in exchange rale a1111>unts to Rs 0.52 lakhs in FY 22-23 Rs (3.92 lakhs 

in FY 2 l-22) 

Credit r isk 
Credit risk is the lisk that counterpa1ty will not meet its oblig<1 lio11s under a findnvial in,trument or cu,t omer C<'11tract, leading to a 
financial 10''· The cumpany is e>..pu,cd to credit ri•k from its operating a<.:tiviti~ (primari ly trade re~eivablt:s) and from its financing 
activ ities, including shott tem1 dcpo,its with bank~ and financia l institutions, and other financial instruments. 

Financial instruments and cash deposits 
Credit risk from balann:s with bank> and financial institutions is man:igcd by the finHnce depa1t111~nt in accordance with the guidance 
from holding company. lnv..:~tmcnts of surplus funds are made only with approved counlerparties kel'ping view of credit risk 3,,<>ciated 

with each counlerparty. 

'~I 



B•ial fll'•cn' Hf'::tllh I .i11d1nt 
Nutt' 10 finlfnrial .Jl•l1.·mtt>I' for lhe \C~.rcnilrd March 3 1. lO?J 
(1\11 ~,, . ... ,.i~ m IJ\!"R -:\.tr u111.~, . d-.. 1 ... :.a 1 .. a. ,,, 

P1U<I •11 lkr•"lit~ ri'k n...-• - . .. ~i,'.'-. " .. ;,. :,.:,,;_. • .• (t', ;....,, (l~h , ... 1, ... .-l H: ,,,;,; 3 ,NJ - ;l .h;htyof f .... 1; .. t lufr ""' {'hi•.,.. ;. ,.-a \l•,"f'.Ju.: in.I to &"t.'1-f-: OUI m.J~ rt ,... ... ;,;.~, ... M . • - .,, .. 1111.nil .. h r. .. i or 
thcli1.111""')_. r" .. ;..;.~,.r1o•••, .. ~1 .. J .. 1-h111.1 . "°'°'i"";. k·it·ai. ~1'- ·· c.f .. , r 1··.1.r .. .. > 

r •• ;-......-t~ rlonl .. n& .. "'1•ir•l\(.:..\ 
R1ghlofl'1: .-"t '.!t 
n 1h..-r ifil,)l\t;hlc ,iu ·•~ 

J11to81.,::hlt 1t~I ' 11n,1.;'f d: , i. ,...1nn1[ 

OfMtt .1•v-
Cu1Tt"n1 t~Y. .> ., 

In "'"''" 
T 1,.J... ""· • ,ah k,; 
C.-.. ti 1nJ l'.l•h '--1ui• S.,-.,.u. 
~ u•i1y \\cro.· .. :1. 
01hcr Fi l~''" i. . J o. 

Ll:thlUt W1 

Ofh *t 'Ull1o'Til li:c.l,ili1i.,~ 
T1•Jc re~•l-1:..-: 
Lc.., •:li.,1-iili1ff-s 

'l'nt:alLIAhitit~ 

Nul&! 26: Cl\11if.al ::ind olht!r ( 11m1oitrod1f<1 

(1 ) C•i>il 11I r u.-.,, •. :ro,-.....,. 
Parll.-ulu r 

'.. ... t 

1,•r..:. 25 

7 1"7.01 

I Ii' .. <9 
1.~111-0 

3,"IJ-l "i3 

39' •S 
1'111•' 42 

11611.61\ 

c~._.;c,,J ,;.,.r . .. '.,,.._ .• .,H" { ....... f;,,, .J "11.~•tf OfC>lf\Jl ~fl • ... 'ft\);nii.~ I;)~ ;"'I y,1..J 

on c.:.ftil•I • l .. 1D1. not ,...-\n;J..-J for (1'1!' of .J• ~"' -cl] 

Plt.rtkular 

{,- ? JG 
I 1,_. ~3 

4 , l fl l> /..J 

21 4.14 

o on 79 

974.46 

974A6 

8 oco '\) 

Yt:ar l"tllirtJ Mut h 31. 2023 

~nnn 

' <V ··· •l....-t 

6-9.:6 
I ,-..... <J 
4, 1$<;.~ 

4 •"'ti"Ht.ll 

' ::23 
:""'( 7J 

} UNI ~; 

2,11..:i.Js 

214.14 
37..10 

11.nM •n 

I.,.., Col 

oofi1' 10 
J ,<J.4 (J 

1,111< ! J 
2 i lll" 42 

1n TlJ u 

6 en~?? 

Y~n t-1·1~-d '.\l:.i.1\..h JI, 
!Oil 

~·.99 

31-Mar· l:? 
\\ 1t t1in 12 murtthic Aftnll n ... nih.- T uu,1 

g:..n <f\ .~ .. (it, 

1.1Q( .f9 ) , \0( 49 
:? Md 03 1,n .. ::1 n:i 

uc~1 J 7li!~ ''° :!h7i'11t} 
., II() ., "" 

) ov 78 y ... ~. 1s 
... ,. !3 e c;q 43 

l,~OOM 15~~ 

~"" '_;; )n"- s:c; 

l~ M 2~ no 
'MnnR 6.~4'< fi5 rn. 11-.13 

I (t~ l oC! IM, Q() 

A'r j(l 40• 00 
],HJ <fi 2.3~((,. 

3004! 974 46 l,31"t '14 
1."Hl'1>7 J 1.2Q< 71 

< 'i'°.'~ 974.J6 6.60171 

{l Of,Q 17) ~ 4Jll.l9 3 "i ll.f'IZ 

Thc'·"'Y'-'"Y"'- •~'r 'lht<mt•l.-; c i..,J-"1"4;._.pl.tn. 2.f'll ~ 1 .. 11r, ... 1,., .._)i.• ..... 1 .lhy1uhf'*,li"S" •·~-'n) . fttiU t"l•'r*. • ..... 1 '"f':.. ''>fi t.sJ111 ·r ... ... pw.i .... 1.1Mlf' tlx r .:M'>l11°i. .. 1r lb)• • ... 1l'~.lus 01t 

tbt alYil•""l .;ct111..• .. 1 t"111.u i"I- The Cftll: ••. 'C. lt • .._1i,:."'f";.•.JI' rl•n is d..."_,, J I<' !'f· "~ Uu..,..;, .. •V thc.Cllfl: ... •• llrlhc '""•"""°) toJt:lh:a lvlll. • t1n ,,.,.,,,.,_ J.0J i! .in '•r•i•1 t- u:.-;-l rLln. The. E'' 1P ii 1• 1111 if .,,frr1in•(1. J by 
11it '" "" 'J .uJ 1'1N·-ti1o4 ._ ... 'Y'wy .t.. a '>'ill blf ;, IC'() 1..1o·'- ttK ioo.-h~nc-io f'uJlt. . ~. r ,..i;. ;l"'''~in in dw r! .. n"" .11 the U. •.!..'1 .,!;~ot"':•'ln .,.1 '"' inJ;.;.1 ... : h1 :. , ., .. . ,., h.1 ·•l 1 i~ top ,,;, ir "' in lhe pt.Ji or to rnr' .Jny 
,.,_.,, ,.", J 1"" li1~. Op1i,.-t>1 ~,,111N v•.Jcr i·""l •P ,..!"""'""" v- .. 11IJ ,·:st i11 flOt ltn: Uwn on: j ... r a1 .. l flnt ,, . .. c- lh.."• r..,.r )-'rs fn.;;, thf J..k or;- .wt ofth~·-,-";.lfl~ Tt--.c loo fJ vflhc: ~· ·• · •· "!" h.n..1pfl'"•"'cd ;J".lul \\irh "t"' 1..,.1 
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